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KARNATAKA STATE AGRICULTURAL PRODUCE PROCESSINGAND EXPORT CORPORATION LIMITED

KARNATAKA STATE AGRICULTURAL PRODUCE PROCESSING
AND EXPORT CORPORATION LIMITED
CIN: U01409KA1996SGC020350

Registered Office : # 17, GENERAL K.S. THIMAYYA ROAD (RICHMOND ROAD), BANGALORE-25.
Email : kappec1995@gmail.com

NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the ADJOURNED TWENTY FOURTH Annual General Meeting of KARNATAKA
STATE AGRICULTURAL PRODUCE PROCESSING & EXPORT CORPORATION LIMITED will be held on
Thursday the 31t day of December 2020 at 05.00 PM at the Registered Office of the Company No. 17,
General K.S. Thimayya Road (Richmond Road), Bengaluru - 560025 to transact the following business:-

ORDINARY BUSINESS:-

1. To consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2020 along with Statement of Profit or
Loss made till the year ended on that date, Notes and the Cash flow statement, that are to be part of these
Accounts, together with the Directors’ Report, Auditors’ Report, Review and Comments of the Comptroller
and Auditor General of India thereon;

2. To declare dividend on equity shares for the year ended 315t March 2020.

3. Toconsider and confirm the appointment of M/s. Nath & Associates (FRN 02426S) as the Statutory Auditors
of the Company for the F.Y. 2020-21 by C&AG vide letter No.CA.V/ COY /KARNATAKA, KSAPPE(1)/
1095 dated 28/09/2020 with fee of Rs.60,000/- plus applicable taxes. Further, to consider request for payment
additional remunaration to previous statutory Auditors as recommended by the Board.

for and on behalf of the Board

Sd/-
SHIVARAJU BORAIAH
Place : Bengaluru DIN: 08093976
Date : 28.12.2020 Managing Director

Note:

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his
behalf and the proxy need not be a member.

2. Proxies, to be effective, should be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company not later than 48
(Forty-Eight) hours before the commencement of the Meeting

3. Alldocuments referred to in this Notice, annexed hereto are available for inspection of the members of the
Company at the registered office of the Company.
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KARNATAKA STATE AGRICULTURAL PRODUCE PROCESSING
AND EXPORT CORPORATION LIMITED

CIN : U01409KA1996SGC020350
Registered Office : # 17, GENERAL K.S. THIMAYYA ROAD (RICHMOND ROAD), BANGALORE-25.
Email : kappec1995@gmail.com

DIRECTORS’ REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2019-20

To,

The Members,

KARNATAKA STATE AGRICULTURAL PRODUCE
PROCESSING & EXPORT CORPORATION LIMITED
CIN: U01409KA1996SGC020350

BENGALURU.

Your directors have pleasure in presenting their Twenty Fourth Annual Report on the business and operations
of the company together with the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31" March, 2020.

Financial Highlights
During the year under review, performance of your company is as under:

Rupees in Lakhs

PARTICULARS Year ended 31" Mar, 2020 Year ended 31" Mar, 2019
Turnover 322.50 436.07
Other Income 99.06 80.89
Profit/ (Loss) before taxation 78.45 165.46
Less: Tax Expense (25.37) (28.84)
Profit/(loss) after tax 53.09 136.63
Add: Balance B/F from the previous year 1809.54 1698.63
Less: Proposed Dividend - (10.00)
Tax on Distributed Profits - (2.05)
Transfer to General Reserve (5.31) (13.66)
Balance Profit/(Loss) C/F to the next year 1857.31 1809.54

State of Company’s Affairs and Future Outlook

Your Directors to state that, your Company has achieved a Total turnover of Rs. 322.50 Lakhs (Previous Year Rs.
436.07 Lakhs) during the year 2019-20 mainly from cold storage operations. The total revenue from Cold Storage
operations are Rs. 320.81 Lakhs (P.Y. Rs.374.66 Lakhs) and Interest and other Income Rs. 100.74 Lakhs (P.Y.
Rs. 142.30 Lakhs). The company has earned a Net Profit After Tax of Rs. 53.09 Lakhs (Previous Year Rs. 136.62)
during the financial year under review.

The main objective of Company is to facilitate and promote the export of Agricultural/Horticultural Products,with
the support from various Government Department/Agencies, Accordingly, the Company has been engaged in
setting-up of post-harvest infrastructure facilities such as Cold Chain Facilities, Warehouse for storing agriculture
and horticulture produce for the benefit of farmers and other stake holders. Works at the some of the post
harvesting facilities which were under progress during the earlier years have completed and have become operational
during the year. Further, works at few of these facilities have reached completion stage and is expected to
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complete in the ensuring financial year. Apart from the above, your company has identified new areas where
additional post harvesting facilities can be created and have taken steps to implement these projects with the
support of various State or Central Government Departments/Agencies.

Amounts Transferred to Reserves

During the Financial Year 2019-20 Rs.5,30,851/- (P.Y. Rs. 13,66,288/-) have been transferred by Company to its
reserves.

Declaration of Dividends

During the Financial Year 2019-20 your Company has proposed a final Dividend of Rs.10/- Lakhs at the rate of
Rs.20/- per share on the paid-up equity capital.

Changes in Share Capital, if any
During the Financial Year 2019-20, there has been no change in the Share Capital of the Company.
Disclosure regarding Issue of Equity Shares with Differential Rights

During the Financial Year 2019-20, the Company has not issued any shares. Hence the question of reporting on
issue of Equity Shares with differential rights does not arise.

Extract of Annual Return
The extract of Annual Return, in format MGT-9, for the Financial Year 2019-20 is enclosed with this report.
Number of Board Meetings

During the Financial Year 2019-20, 4 meetings of the Board of Directors of the Company were held. The details
of the same as follows :

Sl. No. of Board Meetine Date of Meeting
Ninety-seventh Board Meeting 31.05.2019
Ninety-eighth Board Meeting 13.09.2019
Ninety-ninth Board Meeting 30.11.2019
Hundredth Board Meeting 24.01.2020

Details of Holding, Subsidiary, Joint Venture or Associates

Since, the Company is holding 52% of the paid-up share capital of the M/s. Karnataka Compost Development
Corporation Limited (CIN: U90000KA1975SGC002857), has become a subsidiary of the Company. The Company
has prepared consolidated financial statements, after considering the said subsidiary. Further the Company
does not have any Subsidiary, Joint VVenture or Associate entities.

Material Changes Affecting the Financial Position of the Company

Your Directors are to state that there have been no material changes which affect the Financial Position of the
Company.

Risk Management Policy

The Company is a Special Purpose Company (SPC) created under the Government of Karnataka (GoK) Order
No.AHD/71/AMS -95 dt.12/01/1996 to promote the export of Agricultural/Horticultural Products and related activities.

Since the Company is a SPC created under GoK order for the specific purpose to promote the export of Agricultural/
Horticultural Products and related activities, the very existence of the Company is for the implementation of the
programs sponsored/supported by the Government of Karnataka. As such the Company, does not have independent
business identity, existence of the Company depends upon various factors stated herein above and the final
decision of GoK. Hence, the Company has not framed any Risk Management Policy.
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Details of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)

Details of Directors and KMP appointed or resigned during the year as follows:-

SI.No. Name of the Directors Date of Appointment Cessation
1. Smt. Chilkunda Nanjaiah Nandini Kumari (DIN 08206402) 13/07/2018 06/07/2019
2. Shri. Nagasandra Hanumantha Reddy Shivashankar (DIN 02850326) 13/07/2018 13/09/2019
3. Shri. Jagadeesha Koratagere Gopal (DIN 05250331) 05/11/2018 31/05/2019
4. Shri Maheshwar Rao, IAs (DIN:00324069) 04/07/2016 31/05/2019
5. Smt. Padmavathi (DIN 07262520) 01/11/2017 Continuing
6. ShriY.S. Patil, 1As (DIN:06569237) 21/03/2018 31/05/2019
7. Shri Upendra Pratap Singh (DIN: 08289702) 26/12/2018 30/11/2019
8. Shri Ramakrishna (DIN: 08345376) 08/07/2019 03/09/2020
9. Shri Rajender Kumar Kataria, IAs (DIN: 07328000) 31/05/2019 02/07/2020]
10. Shri. Shivaraju Boraiah (DIN 08093976) 06/07/2019 Continuing
11. Shri R. Manoj, IFs (DIN:06770734) 31/05/2019 Continuing
12. Shri Brijesh Kumar Dikshit, IFS (DIN: 08403108) 31/05/2019 Continuing
13. Shri B. Venkatesh, IFs (DIN:07234869) 13/09/2019 Continuing

Statement in Respect of Adequacy of Internal Financial Control with Reference to the Financial
Statements

Considering the nature of business and level of operations of the Company your Directors are to state that, the
company has implemented adequate and appropriate Internal Financial Control procedures/systems, which has
helped in appropriate presentation of Financial Statements.

Statutory Auditors

M/s. Ganesh & Co, Chartered Accountants, FRN: 000862S, have been appointed as Statutory Auditors of the
Company by Comptroller and Auditor General of India for the financial year 2019-20 and hold their office till the
conclusion of the Twenty Fourth Annual General Meeting. C&AG has fixed auditors’ remuneration at Rs.60,000/
- plus applicable taxes for the Financial year 2019-20.

Office the C&AG vide their letter No./CA.V/COY/KARNATAKA.KSAPPE(1)/1095 dt.28/09/2020 have appointed
M/s. Nath & Associates (FRN 02426S), as the Statutory Auditors of the company for the F.y. 2020-21 and have
fixed their remuneration at Rs.60,000/- plus applicable taxes.

Explanation to Auditor’s Remarks

There has been no remark in the revised Independent Auditors’ Report dated December 28, 2020 issued by
Ganesh & co, chartered Accountants.

Supplementary Audit by C&AG

As required U/s 143(6) of the Companies Act, 2013, supplementary audit has been conducted by the Office of the
Principal Accountant General (E&RSA), Karnataka, the management expects Nil comment on the accounts of
your company.

Disclosures under Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal)
Act,20I3

Your Directors are to state that, during the Financial Year 2019-20, there has been no instances to which the
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provisions of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013 is
applicable. Hence, the obligations with regard to disclosures under the said Act, does not arise.

Fraud Reporting (Required by Companies Amendment Bill, 2014)

Your Directors state that during the financial year 2018-19, there has been no fraud against the Company and also
your Company has not committed any fraud.

Particulars of Contracts or Arrangements with Related Parties

During the financial year 2019-20, there was no transaction executed with the Related Parties (as defined u/s
2(76) of the Companies Act, 2013) of the Company, which are required to be reported U/s.188 of the Act.

Deposits

During the year under review, your Company has not accepted any Deposits from the public falling within the
ambit of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.

Particulars of Loan, Guarantees and Investments under Section 186

During the financial year 2019-20, the Company has not given any loan, Guarantee or made investments, to which
the provisions of Section 186 is applicable.

Details of Changes in the nature of business
During the financial year 2019-20 there has been no change in the nature of business of the Company.

Details relating to Conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and
outgo

The particulars as prescribed under sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
applicable rules thereon, pertaining to conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings
and outgo are furnished hereunder:-

i) Conservation of energy

Export promotion and agri support activities of the Company does not involve usage of energy. However, the Cold
Storage & Warehouse facilities created by the Company, as part of agricultural support involve usage of energy.
Your company has used latest technologies in the setting up of these cold storage & warehouse facilities using
energy efficient equipment and by using the state of the art technologies with a view to reduce energy consumption.

ii) Technology absorption

Since business and technology are changing rapidly, investment in technology is of paramount importance to
your company. Since, your company is providing services by setting up of cold storage & warehouse facilities,
management have continuously investing in updating of the relevant technologies from time to time.

iii) Foreign exchange earnings and outgo

The details of foreign exchange earnings and outgo are as follows:
Foreign Exchange Earning : C.Y.Rs. NIL (P.Y. Rs.NIL)
Foreign Exchange outgo : C.Y.Rs. NIL (P.Y. Rs.NIL)
Other fnformation

Taking into consideration the fact that your company is formed as a SPC to create facilities for Storage of
Agriculture and Horticulture Produces to support agriculturists for availing the benefit of better market prices,
promote and support export of Agri Products etc, your Company does not have any activity/information which
requires the reporting under the clauses/statements given below. Hence, your Directors are to state that, provisions
of Section 134 relating to disclosures in Directors’ report on the following clauses/statements are not applicable
to the Company:-
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- Disclosure regarding issue of Employee Stock Options
- Disclosure regarding issue of Sweat Equity Shares

- Statement Indicating the Manner in which Formal Annual Evaluation has been made by the Board of its own
Performance, its Directors, and that of its Committees.

- Disclosure on Management Discussion and Analysis Report

- Disclosures relating to Corporate Social Responsibility contributions

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act 2013, your directors confirm that:-

a. in the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended 31st March, 2020, the applicable
accounting standards had been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

b. the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company as at 3Ist March, 2020 and of the PROFIT of the Company for that financial year;

c. the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d. the directors had prepared the annual accounts on going concern basis;

e. the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and
that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

Acknowledgement

The Board acknowledges with gratitude the valuable supporl, advice and cooperation received from the Central
and State Government Authorities, Customers, and other stake holders. Your Directors take this opportunity to
thank and place on record their sincere appreciation to Bankers, Auditors, Comptroller & Auditor General of India
and all other for their continued support, guidance, advice, valuable suggestions and co-operation received from
time to time.

The Directors wish to place on record their appreciation for the commitments shown by officers and employees
of the Company at all levels.

For and on behalf of the Board

Sd/- Sd/-
Shivaraj Boraiah Padmavathi
Place : Bengaluru DIN 08093976 DIN 07262520
Date : 28-12-2020 Managing Director Director
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FORM NO. MGT 9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on financial year ended on 31.03.2020

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company (Management &
Administration) Rules, 2014.

. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

1 CIN U01409KA1996SGC020350
2 Registration Date 22/04/1996
Name of the Company KARNATAKA STATE AGRICULTURAL PRODUCE

PROCESSING AND EXPORT CORPORATION LIMITED

4 Category/Sub-category of the Company Government Company

Address of the Registered office No. 17, General K.S. Thimayya Road (Richmond Road),
& contact details Bangalore — 560 025 Phone : 080-22271194
6 | Whetherlisted company No

7 Name, Address & contact details of the Not Applicable
Registrar & Transfer Agent, if any.

Il.  PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
(Allthe business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated)

S.No. | Name and Description of main products / services NIC Code of the % to total turnover
Product/service of the company
1 Dealing in Agricultural & Horticultural Produces 0.00%
2 Post-HarvestActivities 100.00%
3

L. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

S.No. Name and address of the Company CIN/GLN Holding/ Subsidiary/ % of shares | Applicable
Associate held Section
1
2 NIL
3
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IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity share capital breakup as percentage of total equity)
(i) Category-wise Share Holding
No. of Shares held at the beginning of the No. of Shares held at the end of the year %
Category of Shareholders year[As on 31-March-2019] [As on 31-March-2020] Chapge
Demat | Physical Total oay ey Demat | Physical | Total oy ot el
Shares Shares | theyear
A. Promoters
(1) Indian
a) Individual/ HUF 0.00% - 0.00% 0.00%
b) Central Govt 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
c) State Govt(s) 50,000 50,000 | 100.00% 50,000 | 50,000 [ 100.00% | 0.00%
d) Bodies Corp. - - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
e) Banks / Fl - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
f) Any other 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Sub Total (A) (1) 50,000 50,000 | 100.00% 50,000 | 50,000 | 100.00% | 0.00%
(2) Foreign
a) NRI Individuals - 0.00% - 0.00% 0.00%
b) Other Individuals - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
c) Bodies Corp. 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
d) Any other - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Sub Total (A) (2) 0.00% - - 0.00% 0.00%
TOTAL (A) 50,000 50,000 | 100.00% 50,000 | 50,000 | 100.00% | 0.00%
B. Public
1. Institutions
a) Mutual Funds 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
b) Banks / FI - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
c) Central Govt 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
d) State Govt(s) 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
e) Venture Capital Funds 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
f) Insurance Companies 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
g) Flls 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
h) Foreign Venture
Capital Funds 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
i) Others (specify) 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Sub-total (B)(1):- - 0.00% - 0.00% 0.00%
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2. Non-Institutions
a) Bodies Corp.
i) Indian - 0.00% - 0.00% 0.00%
ii) Overseas - 0.00% - 0.00% 0.00%
b) Individuals
) Individual
shareholders holding
nominal share capital
uptoRs. 1lakh - 0.00% - 0.00% 0.00%
ii) Individual
shareholders holding
nominal share capital
in excess of Rs 1 lakh - 0.00% - 0.00% 0.00%
c) Others (specify)
Non Resident Indians - 0.00% - 0.00% 0.00%
Overseas Corporate
Bodies - 0.00% - 0.00% 0.00%
Foreign Nationals - 0.00% - 0.00% 0.00%
Clearing Members - 0.00% - 0.00% 0.00%
Trusts - 0.00% - 0.00% 0.00%
Foreign Bodies - D R - 0.00% - 0.00% 0.00%
Sub-total (B)(2):- - - - 0.00% - - - 0.00% 0.00%
Total Public (B) - - - 0.00% - - - 0.00% 0.00%
C. Shares held by
Custodian for
GDRs & ADRs - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Grand Total (A+B+C) - 50,000 50,000 | 100.00% - 50,000 | 50,000 | 100.00% | 0.00%
(ii) Shareholding of Promoter
Shareholding at the beginning of the year | Shareholding at the end of the year
% of Sh % change in
0, q
, %oftotal | e Of Shares %oftotal | 7 OF 9Nares (shareholding
e Shareholder's Name S,.\:lo. of | Sharesofthe| Pledged/ S'\:;rgs Sharesofthe| F1edged/ | quringthe
ares | ompany |encumbered to company encumbered year
total shares to total shares
1| Govt. of Karnataka (GoK) | 49,998 100.00% - 49,998 100.00% - 0.00%
Holding on behalf of GoK
2 Shri Y.S. Patil 1 0.00% - 1 0.00% - 0.00%
3 Sri B. Shivaraju 1 0.00% - 1 0.00% - 0.00%
0.00% - 0.00% - 0.00%
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(iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

Shareholding at the beginning

Cumulative Shareholding during

S.No. Particulars Date Reason ofthe year - the year -
No. of shares /;g;:gtsal No. of shares /"Sﬁ;gtsal
At the beginning of the year 50,000 100.00% 50,000 | 100.00%
Changes during the year 0.00% - | 0.00%
0.00% 0.00%
0.00% 0.00%
Atthe end of the year 50,000 | 100.00% 50,000 | 100.00%

(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders
(Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRSs):

Shareholding at the beginning

Cumulative Shareholding during

S.No. For each of the Top 10 Date Reason ofthe year - the year -

shareholders No. of shares /;g;:gtsal No. of shares /"Sﬁ;gtsal

1 Name
At the beginning of the year 0.00% 0.00%
Changes during the year - 0.00% - | 0.00%
Atthe end of the year 0.00% 0.00%

2 Name
At the beginning of the year 0.00% 0.00%
Changes during the year - 0.00% - | 0.00%
Atthe end of the year 0.00% 0.00%

(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Shareholding of each Directors

Shareholding at the beginning
of the year

Cumulative Shareholding during
the year

S.No|  and each Key Managerial Date Reason % ofotal % offotal
Personnel No. of shares shares No. of shares shares
1 Name Smt. C.N. Nandini Kumari DIN: 08206402
At the beginning of the year 1 0.00% 1 0.00%
Changes during the year 13.09.2019] transfer (1) 0.00% (1) | 0.00%
Atthe end of the year 0.00% 0.00%
2 Name Sri B. Shivaraju DIN: 08093976
At the beginning of the year 0.00% 0.00%
Changes during the year 13.09.2019| transfer 1 0.00% 1 0.00%
Atthe end of the year 1 0.00% 1 0.00%
3 Name Shri Y.S. Patil DIN: 06569237
At the beginning of the year 1 0.00% 1 0.00%
Changes during the year 13.09.2019]| transfer (1) 0.00% (1) | 0.00%
Atthe end of the year 0.00% 0.00%
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4 Name Shri B. Venkatesh DIN: 07234869

At the beginning of the year - 0.00% - | 0.00%
Changes during the year 13.09.2019 | transfer 1 0.00% 1 0.00%
Atthe end of the year 1 0.00% 1 0.00%
V. INDEBTEDNESS
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment. (Amt. Rs./Lacs)
Particulars Secured Loans Unsecured Loans Deposits Total
excluding deposits Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year
i) Principal Amount - - -
i) Interestdue but not paid - - -
i) Interestaccrued but not due
Total (i+ii+iii) - -
Change in Indebtedness during the financial year
*Addition
*Reduction - - -
Net Change
Indebtedness at the end of the financial year
i) Principal Amount
i) Interestdue but not paid
i) Interestaccrued but not due
Total (i+ii+iii) - -

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

B. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole Time Director and/or Manager : (Rs/Lac)
S.No Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/Manager Total Amt.
Name Smt. C.N. Nandini Kumari | SriB. Shivaraju
(DIN: 08206402) (DIN: 08093976)
Designation Managing Director
1 | Gross salary - In Charge Allowence 0.40 12.84 13.24

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1)
of the Income-Tax Act, 1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-Tax Act, 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income- Tax Act, 1961

Stock Option -

Sweat Equity

Commission

- as % of profit

- others, specify -

5 | Others, please specify B
Total (A) - 0.40 12.84 13.24

Ceiling as per the Act NA
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B. Remuneration to other Directors

S.No.| Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors Total Amount

Details of Sitting Fees paid to other Directors given to Annexure - 1 (Rs/Lac)

1 | Independent Directors -

Fee for attending board committee -

Commission NIL -

Others, please specify - Sitting Fees -
Total (1) -

2 | Other Non-Executive Directors

Fee for attending board committee NIL -
Commission -
Others, please specify - Sitting Fees 0.10
Total (2) - - - 0.10
Total (B)=(1+2) - - - 0.10
Total Managerial Remuneration 0.73

Overall Ceiling as per the Act -

C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD

S.No..| Particulars of Remuneration Name of Key Managerial Personnel Total Amount
Name (Rs/Lac)
Designation CEO CFO CS

1 Gross salary NIL NIL NIL

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in
section 17(1) of the Income-Tax Act, 1961 -

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2)
Income-TaxAct, 1961 -

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under
section 17(3) Income- Tax Act, 1961 -

2 Stock Option -
3 | SweatEquity .

4 Commission -

- as % of profit -

- others, specify -

5 | Others, please specify .
Total -
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VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type Section of the Brief Punishment/ [ Authority [RD /| ¢ 5py (give
Companies Act Description | Compounding fees| NCLT/ COURT] Details)
imposed
A. COMPANY
Penalty N.A N.A NIL N.A N.A
Punishment N.A N.A NIL N.A N.A
Compounding N.A N.A NIL N.A N.A
B. DIRECTORS
Penalty N.A N.A NIL N.A N.A
Punishment N.A N.A NIL N.A N.A
Compounding N.A N.A NIL N.A N.A
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty N.A N.A NIL N.A N.A
Punishment N.A N.A NIL N.A N.A
Compounding N.A N.A NIL N.A N.A
For and on behalf of the Board
Sd/- Sd/-
Shivaraj Boraiah Padmavathi
Place : Bengaluru DIN 08093916 DIN 07262520
Date : 28-12-2020 Managing Director Director

ANNEXURE 1 TO MGT -9
(vi) (B) Sitting Fees paid to Director - 31-03-2020

S.N. Name of the Director DIN Sitting Fees paid
Rs.
NON EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
1 [ShriN.H. Shivashankara Reddy | 82850326 1,000.00
2 |Shri Rajendra Kumar Kataria 7328000 3,000.00
3 | ShriR.Manoj 6770734 3,000.00
4 | Shri Brijesh Kumar Dikshit 8403108 1,000.00
5 |Shri B.Venkatesh 7234869 2,000.00
6 |Smt.Padmavathi 7262520 4,000.00
7 | ShriRamakrishna 8345376 3,000.00
TOTAL 17,000.00
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Ganesh & Co No. 4, NTI Layout, Opp. H.I.G. Houses,
Chartered Accountants 1st Main, RMV 2nd Stage, Bengaluru - 560 094
(Reg No : 0008625) Tel : 080-23513136 / 23410488

Email : p.ganesh@vsnl.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To,
The Members of Karnataka State Agricultural Produce Processing and Export Corporation Limited, Bangalore
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying revised standalone financial statements of Karnataka State Agricultural
Produce Processing and Export Corporation Limited, (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at
31st March 2020, and the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement, notes to the standalone
financial statements, including summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

This has reference to the queries raised to the company by office of the Pr. Accountant General (Audit-1)/ AMG-
Il dt. 9-12-2020 and the subsequent communications received from the Deputy Accountant General/ AMG-11
dt.17-12-2020 & 21-12-2020. This Audit Report, on the revised standalone financial statements, has taken into
consideration the above mentioned observations on the earlier audit report on the standalone financial statements
dated 12th November 2020 and supersedes the earlier report and the earlier audit report dated 12'h November
2020 stands revoked.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner required and give a true
and fair view in conformity with the Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2020,
and its financial performance and cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone ffinancial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the revised financial statements under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the standalone ffinancial
statements.

Emphasis of Matter

a) Note No.6, 13 and 15 of the standalone financial statements regarding the balances in Trade payables, trade
receivables and Loans and advances are subject to confirmation.

b) Investment of 16,90,000, 8% Redeemable Cumulative Preference Shares in Tropicool Foods Private Ltd.
amounting to Rs.1,69,00,000 /- was due for redemption along with dividend in 2013-14. The same is pending
as on date.

¢) Equity shares of 1,10,515 in Mysore Tobacco Limited is pending transfer on account of DEMAT procedure
although the same was approved by the state government on 07-06-2018.

d) The company is carrying forward an amount of Rs 80,76,557 as on Balance Sheet date, being GST input
recoverable from Department as per Note 16 under other head "current assets". Since the Company is in the
business of providing cold storage facilities of agricultural produce, falling under Service Code No 9986,
which exempts the activity of storage of agricultural produce from GST levy. As the output is exempt from
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GST, the question of availing input credit will be denied to the company. The input has to be written off in the
books. The Profit and the Current Assets are overstated to same extent.

e) The company had received a Demand Notice from Commercial Tax Department of Government of Kamataka
under Section 9(2) of the CST Act, 1956 and Section 39(1) and 36(1) of the KVAT Act,2003 demanding tax
arrears of Rs.9,75,222 and interest thereon 0fRs.4,82,883 for the year 15-16. The same is pending and no
proof that representation has been made or followed up has been produced. No provision is made in accounts,
as the company has represented that the said sales is export sales and not liable to CST- VAT under Central
Sales Tax Act.

f)  The company has been consistently applying a formula to bifurcate the amount of Interest earned on deposit
between the amount to be transferred to Government grants received and the amount to be considered as
income in Profit and Loss account. The formula requires review as to the basis adopted for application of
interest.

g) The company has not remitted Labour cess amounting to Rs 18,33,074 to Labour department.

h) EMDs, amounting to Rs 1,10,000, received from contractors for the years 2011 and 2013 have not been
returned.

i)  Ason March 2020, excess TDS remitted amounting to Rs 1,31,083.56 is unreconciled pending recovery.

j)  The management has represented that the company has yet to identify the beneficiary/ies in respect of an
amount of Rs 13,09,323 received from APEDA.

k) Underthe Government of Karnataka interest subsidy scheme, an excess interest subsidy, amounting to Rs
2,38,764/-, has been paid to Gayithramma.

[) There are demands from the Income Tax department against the company in respect of Financial years
2009-10 to 2018-19 amounting to Rs 94,88,884.

The company has represented that though the company has got a favourable order from High court of
Karnataka, the Department has filed SLP before the Supreme Court challenging the Order.

However, the department has been adjusting refunds due to the company at regular intervals against the
demands raised by it together with interest under Section 220 of the Income Tax Act without considering the
High Court Order which is in favour of the company. The exact amount of adjustment is not ascertained and
is pending reconciliation.

Fringe benefit tax, amounting to Rs 55,357, is pending reconciliation and no action has been taken to
complete assessment though the regulation has since been discontinued.

m) The company had through tender, allotted warehouse construction work to N B Construction at Belgaum.
Due to defective land title and litigation on the title to land, the land allotment was cancelled and hence, the
company cancelled the work order to N B Construction.

The contractor being the aggrieved party, preferred an appeal for arbitration and was awarded Rs 14.72 lakhs
as compensation. Not satisfied by the said award, the Contractor has preferred fresh appeal in AS76 /2019
dated 25/05/2019 in City Civil Court, Bangalore, claiming an amount of Rs 255,86,824 along with interest,
which is being contested by the company. No provision has been made in the accounts as the company has
represented that it is hopeful of a favourable decision.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
Key Audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
revised financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the revised Standalone
Financial Statements

The Company’s management and Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these revised standalone financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, cash
flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other inegularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgements and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the revised standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud ol error.

In preparing the revised standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the revised Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the revised standalone financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these revised standalone
financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the revised standalone financial statements is included
in “Annexure A” of this auditor’s report..

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements:

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditot’'s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of subsection (11) of Section 143 of the Act, based on the comments in the auditors’ reports
of the company, we give in the “Annexure B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of
the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of his knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpose of their audit;

b) In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books;

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;

d) Inouropinion, the aforesaid revised standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e) Withrespect to the adequacy of intemal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure C”.
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f)  Onthe basis of written representations received from the directors, none of the directors are disqualified
from being appointed as director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act as on 31 March, 2020.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us :

a. The company has pending litigations with income tax authorities as per the details given in
Annexure B.

b. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses;

c. The company was not required to transfer unclaimed dividend to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company.

3. As required by the C & AG in terms of section 143(5) of the Act, we give our comments in “Annexure D”

For Ganesh & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 000862S
Sd/-
(P. GANESH)
Place : Bangalore Membership Number : 019551
Date : 28th December 2020 UDIN : 20019551AAAAJO05175

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the revised Standalone
Financial Statements of Karnataka State Agricultural Produce Processing and Export
Corporation Limited

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the revised Standalone Financial Statement

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

¢+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the revised standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

¢+ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place
and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

¢+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

¢+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the revised standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the revised standalone financial statements including
the disclosures, and whether the revised standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions
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and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the revised standalone financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

For Ganesh & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 000862S
Sd/-
(P. GANESH)
Place : Bangalore Membership Number : 019551
Date : 28th December 2020 UDIN : 20019551AAAAJ05175

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the revised Standalone
Financial Statements of Karnataka State Agricultural Produce Processing and Export
Corporation Limited

1. Inrespect of Fixed Assets:

(i) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details and
situation of fixed assets.

(i) All the fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the period which, in our
opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the company and the nature of its assets. No material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(i) The Title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the Company.

2. The question of verification of physical verification of inventory and discrepancies does not arise as the
company does not carry any its inventory for sale or process.
3. As explained to us, the company has not granted any loans to companies, firms or other parties covered in

the register maintained u/s 189 of the Companies Act, Therefore, the provisions of Clause (iii) of paragraph 3
of the CARO 2016 are not applicable to the Company.

4. Inrespectof loans, investments, guarantees and security, provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies
Act 2013, have been compiled with.

5. Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not accepted
any deposits from public. Therefore, the provisions of Clause (v) of paragraph 3 of the CARO 2016 are not
applicable to the Company.

6. The Central Government has not prescribed maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of section
148 of the Companies Act, 2013.

7. (i) Thecompanyis regularin depositing undisputed statutory dues including, Income tax and other statutory
dues with the appropriate authorities to the extent applicable to it.

(i) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the records verified by us, we
state that no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Income Tax or other statutory dues which have
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remained outstanding as at 31st March 2020 for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable.

(i) According to the information and explanations given to us, the following income tax demands are
outstanding as per the information available in the login portal of the company

Amount in Rs.

SI. No Financial year | Status of Demand [Status of Demand
outstanding in outstanding in
2018-19 2019-20
1 2007-08 441119 | e
2 2009-10 1,61,260 1,61,260
3 2010-11 32580 | ...
4 2013-14 91,02,284 91,02,284
5 2014-15 112620 | ...
6 2017-18 35760 | ...
7 2018-19 2,25,340

(v) The demand of VAT -CST claim of Rs 14,58,105 comprising of both interest and Tax is disputed by the
company as the same is claimed as exempt on account of export sales.

8. The company has neither borrowed any loans from Financial Institutions nor issued any debentures. Therefore,
the provisions of clause (viii) of paragraph 3 of CARO 2016 are not applicable to the Company.

9. During the year, the Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) and term loans.

10. In our opinion, according to the information provided to us, based on our audit checks and on an overall
examination of the books and records of the Company, no fraud on or by the Company has been noticed or
reported during the year.

11. Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the management,
the managerial remuneration has been paid or provided in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated
by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act.

12. The said Company is not a Nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause (xii) of paragraph 3 of CARO
2016 are not applicable to the Company.

13. The transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act,
2013 and the details have been disclosed in the revised standalone Financial Statements as required by the
applicable accounting standards

14. The company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly
convertible debentures during the year under review.

15. The company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him
for the period under review.

16. The Company is not a Non-Banking Finance Company. Therefore, the provisions of Clause (xvi) of paragraph
3 of the CARO 2016 are not applicable to the Company.

For Ganesh & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 000862S
Sd/-
(P. GANESH)
Place : Bangalore Membership Number : 019551
Date : 28th December 2020 UDIN : 20019551AAAAJO05175
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Annexure C to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the revised Standalone
Financial Statements of Karnataka State Agricultural Produce Processing and Export
Corporation Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Karnataka State Agricultural Produce
Processing and Export Corporation Limited(“the Company”) as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of
the revised standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls on Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of
its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal
Financial Controls and, both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgments,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the revised standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process desiged to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Acompany’s internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that:

1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets of the company;

2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of the
revised standalone financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
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management and directors of the company; and

3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the revised standalone financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility
of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2020, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company

considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Ganesh & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 000862S
Sd/-
(P. GANESH)
Place : Bangalore Membership Number : 019551
Date : 28th December 2020 UDIN : 20019551AAAAJO05175

Annexure D to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the revised Standalone
Financial Statements of Karnataka State Agricultural Produce Processing and Export
Corporation Limited

Directions under sub-section (5) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 applicable from 2014-15 and onwards

1. Ifthe company has been selected for disinvestment, a complete status report in terms of valuation of Assets
(including intangible assets and land) and Liabilities (including Cornmitted & General Reserves) may be
examined, including the scope and present of disinvestment process.

As per the information provided to us, the company has not been selected for the disinvestment.

2. To report whether there are any cases of waiver / write off of debts / loans interest etc. If yes, the reason
thereof and the amount involved

Based on the information provided to us there has been no debt waiver /write off of loans and / or
interest.

3.  Whether proper records are maintained for inventories lying with third parties and assets received as gifts
from Government or other authorities.

Based on the information provided and as per the explanations given, the company does not deal
with goods and no inventories is carried in the books of accounts. The company has not received
any gift from the Government or other authorities.

4. Areport of age-wise analysis of pending legal/arbitration cases, including the reason for the pendency and
existence /effectiveness of a monitoring mechanism for expenditure on all legal cases (foreign and local)
may be given.
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Based on the information and explanations provided to us

a) The company has successfully filed an appeal, with the Appellate Tribunal, against the order
of the Income tax Department and the demand raised, for the assessment year 2008-09. We
have been informed that the department has gone on appeal against the order of the Appellate
Tribunal. There are also further demands raised by the Income Tax authorities for other
assessments years which are stated to be under appeal. The total demand is detailed in
Annexure B.

b) The company had, through tender, allotted warehouse construction work to N B Construction
at Belgaum. Due to defective title to land, the company had cancelled the work order. The
contractor has preferred appeal for arbitration and was awarded Rs.14.72 lakhs. The Contractor
has preferred further appeal in no AS76/2019 dated 25/05/2019 in City Civil Court Bangalore,
claiming an amount of Rs. 255,86,824 along with interest which is being contested by the
company and hence no provision has been made in the accounts.

Specific Sub-directions under sub-section (5) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

1.  Whether the Company has an effective mechanism for disbursement of loans/subsidies/agro inputs and
agricultural machineries to beneficiaries and recovery thereof along with interest, if any, from beneficiaries.

Based on the information provided the company has not disbursed loans but has disbursed interest
subsidies during the year. Excess interest subsidy of Rs.2,38,764 has been paid as detailed in our
audit report.

2. That grants/subsidies received for implementing various schemes are accounted for as per the accounting
standards and utilised for intended purpose.

Proper records have been maintained of the grants received from the Government under various
heads and accounted separately as per the accounting standards and as per the information and
explanation provided to us, the grants and subsidies are utilised for purpose for which they have
been granted/obtained and unused amounts are kept in fixed deposit accounts with nationalised
banks and interest received on the same are credited to the relevant grant.

3.  Whether all the agricultural produce procured is properly stored and adequately insured. If any insurance
claims have been rejected, the details may be reported.

As per the information provided to us the company provides storage facilities for agricultural
produce and according to the information and explanation given to us, the same is properly stored
and adequately insured. The management represents no claims was necessary and the question
of rejection does not arise

4. Whether physical verification and valuation of standing crops was done at the end of the year in accordance
with the standard industry practice.

As per the information provided to us the company does not deal in standing crop and information
of the verification and valuation of the same does not arise as it is represented that the company
is engaged with storage of agricultural products only.

5. Examine the system to check the authenticity of claims shown as not recoverable from FCI/State Govt.
As per the information provided to us there are no recoverable claims from FCl/State Government.

For Ganesh & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 000862S
Sd/-
(P. GANESH)
Place : Bangalore Membership Number : 019551
Date : 28th December 2020 UDIN : 20019551AAAAJ05175
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIAUNDER

SECTION 143(6)(b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF KARNATAKA STATE AGRICULTURAL PRODUCE PROCESSING

& EXPORT CORPORATION LTD FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31T MARCH 2020

The preparation of financial statements of Karnataka State Agricultural Produce Processing and
Export Corporation Ltd. Bengaluru for the year ended 31 March 2020 in accordance with the
financial reporting framework prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 is the responsibility of the
management of the Company. The statutory auditors appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General
of India under Section 139(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 are responsible for expressing opinion on
these financial statements under section 143 of the Act based on independent audit in accordance
with the standards on auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have
been done by them vide their revised Audit Report dated 28th December 2020 which supersedes
their earlier Audit Report dated 15th Suptember 2020.

[, on the behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a supplementary
audit of the financial statements of Karnataka State Agricultural Produce Processing and Export
Corporation Ltd., Bengaluru for the year ended 3Ist March 2020 under section 143(6)(a) of the Act.
This supplementary audit has been carried out independently without access to the working papers
of the statutory auditors and is limited primarily to inquiries of the statutory auditors and Company
personnel and a selective examination of some of the accounting records.

In view or revisions made to the Statutory Auditor’s report, to give effect to some of my audit
observations raised during supplementary audit, | have no further comments to offer upon or supple-
ment to the statutory auditors’ report, under section 143(6)(b) of the Act,

For and on behalf of the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India

Sd/-
(E. P. NIVEDITA)
PRINCIPALACCOUNTANT GENERAL
BANGALORE AUDIT - |
Date : 18.03.2021 KARNATAKA, BANGALORE
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PART - | BALANCE SHEET
KARNATAKA STATE AGRICULTURAL PRODUCE PROCESSING AND EXPORT CORPORATION LIMITED
#17, GENERALK.S. THIMAYYA ROAD, BANGALORE - 25. ( In Rupees)
REVISED STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2020
PARTICULARS Note As at 31 March As at 31 March
No 2020 2019
| EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 Shareholders’ Funds
a. Share Capital 2 50,00,000 50,00,000
b. Reserve & Surplus 3 24,04,12,998 23,51,04,486
2 Share application money pending allotment - -
3 Non-Current Liabilities
a. Government Grants 4 1,20,03,80,583 1,19,02,63,717
b. Defferred tax liabilities (net) 5 - -
4 Current liabilities
a. Trade payables 6 17,920 26,120
b. Other current liabilities 7 70,69,610 94,16,688
c. Short-term provisions 8 50,18,348 61,99,607
TOTAL 1,45,78,99,459 1,44,60,10,618
Il ASSETS
1 Non-current assets
a. Fixed assets
i) Tangible assets 9A 44,85,88,136 57,22,44,055
ii) Intangible assets 9B 30,061 1,033
ii) Capital Works in Progress 10 13,47,83,583 4,32,06,983
iv) Intangible assets under developents
b. Non-current investments 1 2,16,05,150 2,16,05,150
c. Deffered tax assets (net) 12 7,59,891 7,33,138
d. Long-term loans and advances
e. Other non-current assets
2 Current assets
a. Trade receivables 13 5,73,478 8,47,159
c. Cash and cash equivalents 14 79,02,12,602 68,14,79,274
d. Short-term loans and advances 15 3,16,51,674 6,70,32,940
e. Other current assets 16 2,96,94,884 5,88,60,886
TOTAL 1,45,78,99,459 1,44,60,10,618
Significant Accounting Policies 1
General Notes 23
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
For and on behalf of the Board As per our report of even date
Sd/- Sd/- For Ganesh & Co.
(B. Shivaraju) (Padmavathi) Chartered Accountants FRN: 000862S
Managing Director Director Sd/-
DIN No.08093976 DIN No.07262520 (Ganesh P)
Place : Bengaluru Date : 28-12-2020 MRN: 019551
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PART - Il _STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
KARNATAKA STATE AGRICULTURAL PRODUCE PROCESSING AND EXPORT CORPORATION LIMITED
#17, GENERALK.S. THIMAYYA ROAD, BANGALORE-25.
REVISED STANDALONE PROFIT AND LOSS STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020
PARTICULARS Note For the year ended For the year ended
No 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
I Revenue from operation 17 3,22,50,327 4,36,07,408
Il Other income 18 99,05,615 80,89,456
Il Total Revenue ( I+l) 4,21,55,942 5,16,96,864
IV Expenses:
Employee benefits expenses 19 1,10,39,029 1,02,95,574
Finance costs 20 12,908 98,067
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 21 1,08,850 2,46,758
Other expenses 22 2,31,49,689 2,45,09,829
Total expenses (1V) 3,43,10,476 3,51,50,229
V Profit before Exceptional and
Extraordinary Iltems and Tax (llI-1V) 78,45,466 1,65,46,635
VI Exceptional items - -
VIl Profit before Extraordinary
Items and Tax (V - V1) 78,45,466 1,65,46,635
VIl Extraordinary items - -
IX Profit before tax ( VII - VIII) 78,45,466 1,65,46,635
X Tax expenses
1) Current tax 25,63,707 34,06,430
2) Deferred tax -26,753 25,36,954 -5,22,672 28,83,758
X1 Profit (Loss) for the period from
continuing operations ( IX - X) 53,08,512 1,36,62,878
Xl Profit/(Loss) from discontinuing operation - -
Xlll Tax expenses of discontinuing operation - -
XIV Profit/(Loss) from discontinuing operation - -
(after tax) ( XII - XIII)
XV Profit (Loss) for the period ( XI + XIV) 53,08,512 1,36,62,878
XVIEarning per equity share:
1) Basic 106.17 273.26
2) Diluted - -
For and on behalf of the Board As per our report of even date
Sd/- Sd/- For Ganesh & Co.
(B. Shivaraju) (Padmavathi) Chartered Accountants FRN: 000862S
Managing Director Director SdJ-
DIN No.08093976 DIN No.07262520 (Ganesh P)
Place : Bengaluru Date :28/12/2020 MRN: 019551
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KARNATAKA STATE AGRICULTURAL PRODUCE PROCESSING AND EXPORT CORPORATION LIMITED
#17, GENERALK.S. THIMAYYA ROAD, BANGALORE-25.
REVISED STANDALONE CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
A. Cash flow from operating activities
Net Profit / (Loss) before extraordinary items and tax 78,45,466 1,65,46,635
Adjustments: Depreciation and amortisation 1,08,850 2,46,758
Interest income on Bank deposits (98,60,408) (80,86,449)
Operating cash flow before working capital changes (19,06,092) 87,06,945
Changes in working capital:
Adjustments for (increase) / decrease in operating assets:
Trade Receivables 2,73,681 (2,99,058)
Loans and Advances 3,53,81,265 (2,00,02,278)
Current Assets 2,91,66,002 (1,89,73,004)
Trade Payables (8,200) 26,120
Other Current Liabilities (23,47,078) 22,06,200
Provisions (11,81,259) 19,77,240
Cash generated from operations 5,93,78,318 (2,63,57,835)
Tax paid, net (25,63,707) (52,85,403)
Net cash flow from /(used in) operating activities (A) 5,68,14,611 (3,16,43,238)
B. Cash flow from investing activities - -
Sale/Purchase of fixed assets and capital advances (31,89,877) 5,39,86,394
Investments in Shares - (37,05,150)
Investments in Bank Deposits (5,83,32,681) -
Interest received 98,60,408 80,86,449
Net cash flow from/ (used in) investing activities (B) (5,16,62,150) 5,83,67,693
C. Cash flow from financing activities - -
Net flows from Grants 4,52,48,185 11,35,83,172
Payment of Longterm Liabilities - -
Dividend paid - (10,00,000)
Net cash flow from/ (used in) financing activities (C) 4,52,48,185 11,25,83,172
Net cash flow during the period (A+B+C) 5,04,00,647 13,93,07,627
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 29,80,64,423 15,87,56,796
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 34,84,65,070 29,80,64,423
Other bank balances 44.17,47,532 38,34,14,851
Cash and cash balance as per the Balance Sheet 79,02,12,602 68,14,79,274
Notes: -
1. The above Cash Flow Statement has been compiled from and is based on the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2020 and the relative
Profitand Loss Account for the year ended on that date.
2. The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared in consonance with the requirements of Accounting Standard (AS) -3 on Cash
Flow Statements issued by the ICAI of India and the reallocations required for the purpose are as made by the company.
3. Previous year’s figures have been regrouped/reclassified wherever necessary to conform with current year.
For and on behalf of the Board As per our report of even date
Sd/- Sd/- For Ganesh & Co.
(B. Shivaraju) (Padmavathi) Chartered Accountants FRN: 000862S
Managing Director Director Sd/-
DIN No.08093976 DIN No.07262520 (Ganesh P)
Place : Bengaluru Date :28/12/2020 MRN: 019551
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KARNATAKA STATE AGRICULTURAL PRODUCE PROCESSING AND EXPORT CORPORATION LIMITED
Registered Office : # 17, GENERALK.S. THIMAYYA ROAD, BANGALORE-25.

NOTES TO REVISED STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENT AS ON 31.03.2020
NOTE - 1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A Basis of Accounting :

The standalone Financial Statements have been prepared on accrual basis under historical cost convention
in accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, relevant provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and in accordance with the Accounting Standards specified by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India.

B  Revenue Recognition :

a Anyexpenditure incured on project preparation which will be reimbursed by Government of Karnataka
will be charged to expenses in the year of incurrence of such expenses. Any reimbursement of the
above from Government of Karnataka will be accounted on receipts basis.

Interest income has been accounted on accrual basis as per the certificates issued by the bank.

The interest earned on unutilised grant/subsidy kept as bank fixed deposit is transferred to grant and
treated as Capital reserves However, the Company has not invested in separate FDRs as per the
different grants received. The investmentis made in FDRs out of the pooled funds received from different
grants. The interest earned on the pooled FDRs has been apportioned to each of the grant/subsidy
based on the quantum of each grant/subsidy.

d i) Manufactured Products : Revenue on sale of manufactured products is recognized when significant
risks and rewards of ownership of products are passed on to the customers.

ii) Traded Products: Sales, wherein goods are delivered directly to the company’s customers, by the
Company’s approved Vendors, are recognized as and when the Delivery Challan indicating the quantity
of goods supplied is intimated to the company by the company’s approved Vendor.

e Use of Estimates:

In preparing the Financial Statements in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, Management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent Liabilities as at the date of Financial Statements
and amounts of revenue and expenses during the reported period. Acutal results could differ from those
estimates. Any revision to such estimates is recognized in the period the same is determined.

f  Prior period adjustments, exceptional items, extraordinary items and changes in accounting policies
having material impact on the financial affairs of the Company are disclosed
C Government Grants and Assistance :

a. Grantreceived by the company from the Government of Karnataka for the activities of the company has
been treated as capital grants and included under Reserves and Surplus since the same is in the nature
of promoter’s contribution.

b. Grantsreceived towards acquisition of Fixed Assets are shown under Deferred Government Grants. The
grants so received are treated as deferred revenue income and the depreciation attributable to the
extent of the grant/ subsidy received is adjusted from total depreciation debited to Profit and Loss
Account by a debit to the specific grant/subsidy it relates to over the useful life of the asset.

c. Power Consumption subsidy is accounted for on cash basis.
d. Grants and assistances received but not yet utilised are shown separately under Grant from the
Government of Karnataka
D Fixed Assets :

a. FixedAssets including Capital Work in Progress are stated at cost which includes all expenses directly
attributable to bringing the assets to their working condition.
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b. Depreciation on Fixed Assets is provided on pro-rata basis on useful life of the asset at the rates which
are in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013. In respect of fixed assets acquired
out of grants and subsidies from the Government and other agencies, the depreciation attributable to
the extent of the grant/subsidy received is adjusted from total depreciation debited to profit and loss
account by a debit to specific grants/subsidy it relates to.

E Investments:

Long term investments are stated at cost. Provision is made if in the opinion of the management, diminution
in value of investments is other than temporary in nature. Current Investments are stated at lower of cost or
market value. Dividend on Preference Shares will be recognised on receipt basis.

F  Employee Benefits :

Short Term Employee Benefitis recognized as an expenses in the Profit & Loss Account of the year in which
the related service is rendered Post employment and other Long Term Employee Benefits are provided for
the Account in the following manner.

a. Contribution to Provident Fund is accounted on accrual basis.

b. The Company contributes to a Group gratuity scheme of Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC) for
future payment of retirement gratuities to its employees. The premium paid thereon is debited to profit
and loss account. The premium has been computed so as to cover the company’s liability under the
gratuity scheme in respect of all its employees at the end of their future anticipated service with the
Company.

The subsidiary does not contribute to a fund, but the liability on account of gratuity to employees is
determined on actuarial valuation.

c. Leave Salary and Pension contribution in respect of officials on deputation have been made as per
service rules of their respective parent organisations.

d. Provision towards leave salary of employees has been made.

G Taxes on Income:

a. Income Tax is computed in accordance with Accounting Standard (AS-22 ‘Accounting for taxes on
income) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Tax expenses are accounted for in
the same period to which the revenue and expenses relate. The current tax is determined on the
amount of tax payable in respect of taxable income for the year.

b. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for the future tax consequences attributable to timing
differences between the financial statements carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and
their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the enacted or
substantially enacted tax rates as on the balance sheet date. Deferred tax asset is recognised and
carried forward when it is reasonably certain that sufficient taxable profits will be available in future
against which deferred tax assets can be realised.

H Foreign Currency Transaction :

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the rate of exchange prevailing on the date of transaction. All
exchange differences are dealt within profit and loss account. Current assets and Current liabilities in foreign
currency outstanding at the year end are translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the close of the year
and resultant gains/losses are recognised in the profit and loss account.

| Proposed Divident

Dividend recommended by the Board of Directors is provided for, in the Accounts pending Shareholder’s
approval.

J  Contingent Liabilities

a) Provisions are recognized in terms of Accounting Standard (AS-29) - ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities
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and Contingent assets’, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, where there is a
present legal or statutory obligation as a result of past events, where it is probable that there will be
outflow of resources to settle the obligation and when a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation
can be made.

b) Contingent Liabilities are recognized only when there is a possible obligation arising from past events
due to occurrence or non occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control
of the Company where any present obligation cannot be measured in terms of future outflow of resources
or where a reliable estimates of the obligation cannot be made. Obligations are assessed on an on
going basis and only those having a largely probable outflow of resources are provided for.

c) Contingent Assets are not recognized in the Financial Statements

NOTE - 2 SHARE CAPITAL

Particulars As at 31 As at 31
March 2020 March 2020
Rs. Rs.
a. Authorised Share Capital

5,00,000(p.y. 5,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 100/- each 5,00,00,000-00 5,00,00,000.00

Issued, Subscribed, Called up and Paid up :
50,000 (p.y. 50,000) Equity Shares of Rs.100/- each fully Paidup ~ 50,00,000.00 50,00,000.00
Total 50,00,000.00 50,00,000.00

b. The Company has only one class of shares referred to equity shares having a par value of Rs 100/- each.
Holder of equity shares entitled to vote as per section 87of Companies Act 2013.

c. Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding :

Particulars Equity Shares
Number Rs.
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year. 50,000 50,00,000
Shares Issued during the year nil nil
Shares bought back during the year nil nil
Shares outstanding at the end of the year. 50,000 50,00,000
d. Shares held by each Shareholder holding more than 5% Shares
Name of shareholder 31-Mar-2020
No % of Holding
Government of Karnataka 49,998 100
e. Equity Shares:
Particulars 2019-20 2018-19
Fully paid up pursuant to Contract(s) without payment
being received in cash NIL NIL
Fully paid up by way of bonus shares NIL NIL
Shares bought back NIL NIL
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b)

1)
a)

NOTE -3 RESERVES AND SURPLUS

a. Capital Reserve :
(Represents Government Grants towards Share Capital
and for acquisition of non depreciable assets under
various schemes)

Opening balance
Less: Written back due to Concelation of land Allotment
Closing balance

b. General Reserve :

Opening balance
Add: Transferred from surplus

c. Surplus:
Opening balance
Add: Net Profit/(Net loss) for the Current year
Less: Proposed Dividends
Less: Tax on Distributed Profits
Less: Trasferred to General Reserve
Closing balance
TOTAL (A+B+C=D)

3 a) Grant-in-aid received by the Company amounting to Rs.25 lakhs from the Government of Karnataka
(Rs12.50 Lakhs each vide G.O. Dt. 24.7.96 and 15.3.97) for the activities of the company has been
treated as Capital grant under Reserves & Surplus since the same is in the nature of promoters’

contribution.

During the year 10% of net profit has been transferred to General Reserve.(previous year 10% )
NOTE -4 GRANTS FROM GOVERNMENT OF KARNATAKA

A

Grants from Government of Karnataka for Specified Assets

Deferred Government Grants
Cold Storage projects - Grants from Government

(Visveswaraiah Industrial Trade Centre under ASIDE Scheme,
Karnataka State Horticulture Mission Agency, Rastriya Krushi

Vikasa Yojana & APEDA)
Openining Balance
Add : Current year Transfer

Less : Partially completed Projects capitalised in
earlier year reversed

Add : Depreciation reversed on the above reversal
Less : Depreciation Absosrbed
Closing Balance

Bangalore)

a

4,59,38,072

4,59,38,072

82,12,808
5,30,851

87,43,659

18,09,53,606
53,08,512

5,30,851

18,57,31,267
24,04,12,998

54,40,24,554
2,15,86,486

12,16,19,052
50,139

2,35,78,094
42,04,64,033

(i) The Government of Karnataka under Rastriya Krushi Vikas Yojana has released grants for creating
Warehouse (cold/hot storage facilities in Northern Karnataka districts and in Devenahally near

11,20,36,358
6,60,98,286
4,59,38,072

68,46,520
13,66,288
82,12,808

16,98,62,569
1,36,62,878
10,00,000
2,05,553
13,66,288
18,09,53,606
23,51,04,486

41,57,84,900
15,11,75,190

2,29,35,536
54,40,24,553
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(i) The accounts of the completed projects are maintained separately and the depreciation on the
facility is fully absorbed.

b) Government Grants (Projects not Completed)

Grant from Government of Karnataka under Rastriya Krushi
Vikas Yojana / APEDA for creation of Cold Chain Facilities

Opening Balance 42,97,80,006 32,38,43,237
Add : Assistance from VITC/RKVY - 15,00,00,000
Less : Assistance from APEDA for KUDACHI Project 57,72,451 -
Add : Assistance from APEDA Humnabad Bidar project and TAS - 2,44,25,868
Add : Written back from Capital Reserve due to Cancellation of land - 6,60,98,286
Add : Interest earned 1,90,77,966 1,65,87,805
Add : Reversed from Deferred Government Grants 12,16,19,052 -
Less : Amount returned to APEDA / RKVY - -
Less : Assets Created 2,15,86,486 15,11,75,190
Closing Balance b 54,31,18,087 42,97,80,006

Gross Total (a+b) 96,35,82,120 97,38,04,560

2) Grant from Government of Karnataka
a) To KABDC for conducting various Agri Business Programmes

Opening Balance 1,40,17,004 1,05,74,729
Add : Additional Grant Received 2,00,00,000 99,00,000
Add : Security Deposit Received Back 2,90,000 -
Less : Payments made by KABDC 88,56,816 64,57,725
Closing Balance a 2,54,50,188 1,40,17,004

Karnataka Agri Business Development Corporation, a unit of the company, has received grant from the
Government for various agribusiness programmes. The same is accounted separately.

b) Assistance From APEDA for KUDACHI Project

Opening Balance 58,45,709 63,45,709
Add : Additional Grant Received - -
Add : Transfer from other Government Grants 57,72,451 -
Less : Payments for KUDACHI Project 1,16,03,363 5,00,000
Closing Balance b 14,797 58,45,709

The Company has received grant from Raibag Associates for the Kudachi Project and the payments are
being handled by the company.

c) Grants from Government of Karnataka (Purchase of MTC Shares)

Opening Balance 7,64,62,136 7,27,36,450
Add : Additional Grant Received - -
Add : Interest earned 33,94,160 37,25,686
Less : Payments - -
Closing Balance 7,98,56,296 7,64,62,136

The Government of Karnataka vide GO No AD/28/APD/2013 BANGALORE DATED 25-8-2014 had
released grant of Rs. 859.00 lakh towards the purchase of 58079 shares at Rs. 1479/- per share by the
Company relating to private share holders of Mysore Tobacco Company Limited. Accordingly, the
Company had purchased 20543 shares from the concerned private share holders by paying Rs.
3,03,83,097/-.For the balance shares of 37536, time limit for purchase of shares was given up to 31-3-
2017 for the private share holders. Subsequently, the State Government had amended the earlier
Government order dated 25-8-2014 and ordered for procurement of shares by KAPPEC on behalf of the
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State Government and shares allotted to the Governor of Karnataka vide Go No AD/28/APD/2013
BANGALORE DATED 27-8-2016. The interest of Rs.33,94,160 (P.Y 37,25,686) has been accounted
under the said ledger in Government Grants, The shares purchased has been transfered in the name of
Governor of Karnataka Vide Share Certificate No. 6502 dt. 16/08/2017.
d) Grants from Government of Karnataka - Interest Subsidy Scheme
Opening Balance 1,27,95,398.06 1,23,68,109.06
Add : Additional Grant Received 2,25,00,000 -
Add: Interest earned 5,67,989 6,33,516.00
Less : Interest Subsidy Paid 2,27,42,907 2,06,227.00
Less : Payments - -
Closing Balance d 1,31,20,480 1,27,95,398
The Government of Karnataka had released funds amounting to Rs 5.50 Crore for Interest subsidy
scheme, payable to Farmers, for construction of warehouses. The amount has been temporarily deposited
in the bank. An amount of 5,00,00,000 was transferred in 2017-18 to ITF 2018, An amount of
Rs.2,27,42,907 has been released as interest subsidy to eligible farmers for warehouse construction.The
balance amount continues to earn interest.
e) GOK - Organic Federation
Opening Balance 8,51,28,069 12,49,75,325
Add : Additional Grant Received 10,30,180 -
Add: Interest earned 51,04,670 95,17,170
Less : Payments 75,00,000 4,93,64,426
Closing Balance 8,37,62,919 8,51,28,069
The Government of Karnataka Organic Federation has routed its grant for the development of regional
organic and millet federation through the company. An additional grant of Rs.10,30,180 was received
during the year.
f) National Trade Fair - 2017
Opening Balance 95,41,633 1,01,24,245
Add : Additional Grant Received - -
Less : Payments - 582,612
Closing balance 95,41,633 95,41,633
g) International Trade Fair O&M - 2018
Opening Balance 10,20,640 3,53,66,212
Add : Additional Grant Received 11,984 8,13,925
Less : Payments for International Trade Fair 2018 - 3,51,59,497
Closing Balance 10,32,624 10,20,640
h) International Trade Fair O&M - 2019
Opening Balance 1,16,48,568 -
Add : Additional Grant Received 1,00,80,465 10,17,05,546
Less : Payments for International Trade Fair 2019 48,83,864 9,00,56,978
Closing Balance 1,68,45,169 1,16,48,568
i) GOK-Shoonya Bandavala
Opening Balance - -
Add : Additional Grant Received 71,74,357 -
Less : Payments
Closing Balance 71,74,357 -
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The Government of Karnataka under the Shoonya Bandavala Scheme has routed its grant of Rs. 71,74,357
for the development of regional organic and millet farming through the company.

Total (a to i) 23,67,98,463 21,64,59,156
Grand Total 4(1) + 4(2) 1,20,03,80,583 1,19,02,63,717
NOTE - 5 DEFFERED TAX LIABLITY (NET)
Timing Difference
Deferred Tax Asset (Net) - -

Less/Add: Tax on difference in IT and Books Depreciation - Asset -
Deferred Tax Asset (Net) - -

NOTE - 6 TRADE PAYABLE
Total outstanding dues to Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises - -

Total outstanding dues Creditors other than SME. 17,920 26,120
17,920 26,120

NOTE -7 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Other Liabilities 66,34,576 92,23,242
Advances received from customers 26,855 -
KABDC 4,08,179.26 1,93,446
70,69,610 94,16,688

NOTE -8 SHORT TERM PROVISIONS

Provision for Earned Leave 50,18,348 49,94,054
Provision for Dividend - 10,00,000
Provision for Tax on Distributed Profits - 2,05,553
50,18,348 61,99,607

NOTE - 9 FIXED ASSETS

NOTE - 9A TANGIBLE ASSETS Amounts in Rs.
GROSS BLOCK (AT COST) ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK (AT COST)

PARTICULARS Opening Additions | Deduction/ | Closing Opening Addition | Deductior] Closing

balance as | during the [Adjustmens®| balance as | balance as | during the | during thg balance as as on as on

on 01.04.19 Year during theYr| on 31.03.20 ]| on 01.04.19 Year Year |on 31.03.20 31.03.20 31.03.19
Land-Lease cum Sale| 2,75,77,202 - - 2,75,77,202 - A - 1 2,75,77,202 | 2,75,77,202
Building 37,98,16,904] 2,05,16,4867,36,85,853(32,66,47,537| 3,52,44,242| 94,29,184 - 4,46,73,42628,19,74,111 |34,45,72,662
Plant & Machinery  |26,00,45,880[ 10,70,000(4,79,33,199(21,31,82,681| 6,31,18,514|1,39,28,339| 50,139 | 7,69,96,71413,61,85,967 |19,69,27,366
Comp. & Peripherals 14,44,647 - - 14,44,647]  13,38,717 28,268 - 13,66,985 77,662 1,05,930
Furniture & Fixture 15,08,371 - - 15,08,371]  12,39,585 46,830 - 12,86,4158  2,21,956 2,68,786
Office Equipment 7,71,671 - - 7,71,671 7,30,858 7,395 - 7,38,253 33,418 40,813
Vehicles-Cars 33,47,834 - - 33,47,834]  30,44,135 41,173 - 30,85,308  2,62,526 3,03,699
Refregirated van 57,59,742 - - 57,59,742]  33,12,145| 1,92,303 - 35,04,448 22,55294| 24,47,597
TOTAL 68,02,72,251 2,15,86,486| 12,16,19,052 58,02,39,685 10,80,28,195| 2,36,73,492| 50,139 13,16,51,5491 44,85,88,136 57,22,44,055
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NOTE - 9B INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Computer Software 81,526 42,480 - 1,24,006 80,493 13452| - 93,945 30,061 1,033
Total 81,526 42,480 - 1,24,006 80,493| 13452 - 93,945 30,061 1,033
GRAND TOTAL | 68,03,53,777] 2,16,28,966 [12,16,19,05458,03,63,691 [10,81,08,688[2,36,86,944] 50,139 | 13,17,45,494144,86,18,197 [57,22,45,088

[Previous Year Totall 59,51,63,003|15,12,89,060 |6,60,98,286|68,03,53,777| s,49,2s,394|2,31,82,294| . |10,81,08,688'57,22,45,089 |51,05,60,647

*Reversal of An amount of Rs 7,18,91,478 under Building, and Rs 3,83,01,211 under Plant & Machinery of Humnabad Projectand
Vijayapura project due to non completion/non handing over of project and Rs 17,94,375 under head Building and Rs 96,31,988 under
head Plant & Machinery of ACR Kudachi Project as the same is not the asset of the company.

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Rs Rs

NOTE - 10 CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS
- Poojenahally 50,81,243 45,31,363
- Hubli-Hot Water Treatment - 2,05,16,486
- Work in Progress KTPP ACT Gadag Cold Storage 9,39,584 9,39,584
- Work in Progress - ACR Kudachi Project - 1,77,000
- Work in Progress - ACR Poojenahalli Project - 5,49,880
- WIP-KSWC-HUMNABAD (RKVY) 1,64,92,670 1,64,92,670
- WIP-KSWC-VIJAYAPURA (RKVY) 3,83,01,211 -
- Work in Progress - Humnbad 7,39,68,875 -
Total 13,47,83,583 4,32,06,983

NOTE - 11 NON - CURRENT INVESTMENT
Long Term Investment in Shares- at Cost, Unquoted & fully paid up
a 1,00,000 (p.y. 70,000) Equity Shares Rs.10/- each

of International Flower Auction Bangalore Ltd., (face value) 10,00,000 10,00,000
b. 16,90,000 (p.y. 16,90,000) 8% Redeemable Cumulative Preference

Shares at Rs 10/- each of Tropicool Foods Private Ltd., (face value)  1,69,00,000 1,69,00,000
c. Purchase of Karnataka Compst Development Corporation

26000 Equity shares of Rs. 100 each (face value) 26,00,000 26,00,000
d. Purchase of The Mysore Tobacco Company Limited.

11,000 Equity Share of Rs. 10 each (face value) 11,05,150 11,05,150

Total 2,16,05,150 2,16,05,150

NOTE -12 DEFFERED TAX ASSET (NET)
Timing Difference

Deferred Tax Asset (Net) 7,33,138 2,10,466
Less/Add: Tax on difference in Income Tax and Books Depreciation 26,753 5,22,672
Deferred Tax Asset (Net) 7,59,891 7,33,138

NOTE - 13 TRADE RECEIVABLE
Trade Receivable (Considered good)

Outstanding for a period exceeding Six Months - 1,30,516
Outstanding for a period less than Six Months 5,73,478 7,16,643
Total 5,73,478 8,47,159

101



KARNATAKA STATE AGRICULTURAL PRODUCE PROCESSINGAND EXPORT CORPORATION LIMITED

NOTE - 14 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash in hand

Bank balances with Scheduled Banks:

- In Current Accounts

- In Saving Accounts

- In Saving Accounts KABDC

- In Divident Amount

- In Fixed Deposits

Total

NOTE - 15 SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

(Secured/Unsecured, considered good)

a) Secured
b) Unsecured (other unsecured, considered good)
Other Advances
Deposits
Tax paid in advance/TDS (Net of Provision)
Fringe benefit Tax paid in advance (Net of Provision)
Total
NOTE -16 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Prepaid Expenses
Interest on IT Refund Receivable
Interest acrued but not due on Fixed Deposits
Department of Agriculture
Duties and taxes
Total
NOTES - 17 Revenue From Operation
Cold storage charges
Other Operating Revenues (Stall Booking Charges)
KABDC - Training Charges
Total
NOTES -18 Other Income
Interest from Banks (Gross) 3,80,05,193

Less : Interest on Government grants, Apeda/RKVY
subsidy, GABIM fund, MTC, Intrest Subsidy Scheme
and KSHMA transferred to respective A/c
shown in the Balance Sheet

Interest on Electricity Board Deposit
Miscellaneous Income

TOTAL

Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received

2,81,44,785

64,058

3,60,19,317

28,64,96,781

2,58,48,440
36,473

44,17,47,532
79,02,12,602

1,02,63,763
27,60,881
1,85,71,673
55,357

3,16,51,674

26,880
2,15,08,732
82,715
80,76,557

2,96,94,884

3,20,81,536
1,68,791

3,22,50,327

3,85,50,626

98,60,408 3,04,64,177

45,199
7

99,05,615

15,793

3,95,94,715
24,41,95,548
1,42,22,213
36,154

38,34,14,851
68,14,79,274

4,63,51,507
27,69,116
1,78,56,960
55,357

6,70,32,940

93,328
26,880
5,26,20,658
82,715
60,37,306

5,88,60,886

3,74,66,587
61,40,821

4,36,07,408

80,86,449

3,007

80,89,456
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NOTE - 19 Employee Benefit Expenses
Salary & Allowances, Exgratia & Other Contribution
Managing Director Salary
Contribution to EPF
Gratuity premium paid LIC
Earned Leave account
TOTAL
NOTE - 20 Finance Cost
Bank Charges
TOTAL
NOTE - 21 Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses
Depreciation
Less : Absorbed from Government Grants
TOTAL

NOTE - 22 Other Expenses

Cold Storage Expenses:
Power & Water Charges
Maintenance & Consumables

1,13,70,605
11,87,513
Advertisement Expenses
Exhibition and Business Promotion Expenses
Travelling and Conveyance - Directors
Travelling and Conveyance - Others
Telephone Charges
Directors’ Sitting Fees
Rent
Office Maintenance
Printing and Stationary
Rates and Taxes
Refreshment Expenses
Books and Periodicals
Professional Charges
Postage & Courier charges
Insurance
Service Outsourcing Charges
Pooja Expenses
Repairs and Maintenance:
Vehicles
Office Equipment
Audit fee :
For Statutory audit 77,100
For Tax Audit -
For Other Services -

6,06,338
41,340

94,41,459

94,41,459
10,00,397
1,85,000
412,173

1,10,39,029

12,908

12,908

2,36,86,944

2,35,78,094
1,08,850

1,25,58,118
3,80,714
6,69,915
24,125
3,44,553
1,37,360
20,000
2,12,400
60,860
2,91,115
29,770
3,19,451
9,831
10,47,887
19,188
20,88,401
38,09,821
16,200

6,47,678

70,24,102

9,09,280

43,214

70,24,102
5,58,487
5,13,923

21,99,062

1,02,95,574

98,067
98,067

2,31,82,294
2,29,35,536
2,46,758

88,13,722
97,23,002
50,000
18,999
91,128
3,91,027
1,03,002
11,000
2,12,400
1,09,037
2,44,347
2,765
3,97,745
20,053
4,03,508
20,503
26,53,220
39,87,349
27,721

7,62,337
8,05,551

35,000
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Out of pocket expenses - 77,100 - 35,000
Electricity, water & Generator Expenses 76,426 63,360
Interest on TDS & DDT Tax Paid 2,31,061 38,130
Chairman Expenditures 49,265 5,67,508
Internet & Security 15,608 7,183
Meeting Expenses 12,842 2,360
Remuneration to Vice Chairman (CAR) - 1,75,612
Hamali Charges - 2,30,033
Loss on Land - 41,18,286

TOTAL 2,31,49,689 2,45,09,829

NOTE - 23 GENERAL NOTES
a) Earnings in Foreign Currency : 2019-20 2018-2019

Exports (FOB) Rs. NIL Rs. NIL

b) i) Anamountof Rs 34,207/- has been deducted/adjusted towards arrears of IncomeTax for the assesment
year 2002-03 which has been disputed by the company.

i) The Company has filed the revised return for the assesment year 2002-03 claiming refund of
Rs 91,207/- which was not considered by the department at first instance. However the representation
made by the company in this regard is pending.

(i) The Company has received notice from Commercial Tax Department for the financial year 2015-16
demanding an amount of Rs 14,58,405 which is being contested as the same relates to export transaction
not liable to VAT

(iv) The Income tax website indicates set off of the refunds due to the company which has to reconciled.
After set off of claims by the Department, the balance claim amount to Rs 94,88,884 which has not be
provided for in the books

(vy The company had, through tender, allotted warehouse construction work to N B Construction at Belgaum.
Due to litigation in title to land, the company has cancelled the work order. The contractor preferred
appeal for arbitration and was awarded Rs 14.72 lakhs. Not satisfied by the order the Contractor has
preferred appeal no AS76 /2019 dated 25/05/2019 in City civil court Bangalore claiming an amount of Rs
2,55,86,824 along with interest which is being contested by the company.

c) The Company has carried forward Rs 80,76,557 as GST input recoverable in future years inspite of the fact
that as per Notification 12 /2017 dated 28th June 2017 and Section 11(1) of the CGST Act 2017 and Service
code 9986 storage or Warehousing of agricultural produce is covered under exemption and hence admissablity
of such input amount does not arise under the GST Act. The entire amount is to written off

d) Under the Government of Karnataka interest subsidy scheme, excess interest subsidy, amounting to Rs
2,38,764/-, has been paid to Gayithramma

e) i) Theinterestincome of Rs.1,05,43,773/- earned on the short term deposit which was transferred to the
respective Government grants has been treated as income from other soures under Sec 56 of the IT Act
1961 by the income tax authorities and demand has been raised for Rs 23,82,031/- for AY 2008-09 vide
order dated 16.11.2010. An Appeal which was preffered on the said order by the company on 23.12.2010
has been dismissed by the Commissioner of Income Tax, Appeal |,Bangalore. The company had filed a
further appeal before The Income Tax appellate Tribunal, Bangalore Bench, which has been disposed off
in favour.of the company. However the rectified order with refund is awaited from the IncomeTax
Department.

i) Inrespectof FBT forthe AY 2008-09, the Income Tax Department has raised a demand of Rs. 68,580/
-order dated 16.11.2010, as payable u/sec 115 WE(1) of the Act. The company has filed for rectification
of mistake u/s 154 on 06.12.2010 and no order has been received on the same.
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f)  The Company contributes to a group gratuity scheme of Life Insurance Corportaion of India (LIC) for future
payment of retirement gratuties to its employees. The premium caluculated by LIC based on actuarial
valuation.

g) According to the opinion of the management, disclosure of information on segmental reporting of operations
of the Company is not applicable.

h) The Company is a Government Company within the meaning of Section 617 of the Companies Act 1956 and
is wholly owned by the Government of Karnataka. The Directors are appointees /nominees of Government of
Karnataka.

i)  Capital commitments : The Company has awarded work for construction of Integrated Cold Chain Facility at
Poojenahalli .

j)  Horticulture Farm near International Airport to Rinac India Ltd Ulsoot, Bangalore -8 at all inclusive Tender
Price of Rs 24,60,00,000. The management has represented that the work has commenced and no running
acccount bill has been raised to date.

k) Inrespect of fixed assets, an amount of Rs 7,18,91,478 under Building, and Rs 3,83,01,211 under Plant &
Machinery of Humnabad Projectand Vijayapura project has been reversed to work in progress due to non
completion/non handing over of project and an amount Rs 17,94,375 under head Building and Rs 96,31,988
under head Plant & Machinery of ACR Kudachi Project has been reversed to Assistance From APEDA for
KUDACHI Project under 4(2b), as the company is only a facilitator for the project and the same is not the
asset of the company.

)  EARNING PER SHARE in Rs
PARTICULARS For the year ended For the year ended
31.03.2020 31.03.2019
Net Profit after tax 53,08,512 1,36,62,878
Earning per Eqity share of Rs 100 each (Basic) 106.17 273.26

m) Previous year’s figures have been regrouped/reclassified wherever necessary to be in conformity with the
current year’s presentation.

n) Balances in trade payables and trade receivables pending confirmation.
Signature to Note No 1 to 23

For and on behalf of the Board As per our report of even date
Sd/- Sd/- For Ganesh & Co.
(B. Shivaraju) (Padmavathi) Chartered Accountants FRN: 000862S
Managing Director Director Sd/-
DIN No.08093976 DIN No.07262520 (Ganesh P)
Place : Bengaluru Date : 28-12-2020 MRN: 019551
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Ganesh & Co No. 4, NTI Layout, Opp. H.I.G. Houses,
Chartered Accountants 1st Main, RMV 2nd Stage, Bengaluru - 560 094
' Email : p.ganesh@vsnl.com
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To,

The Members

Karnataka State Agricultural Produce Processing and Export Corporation Limited,

Bengaluru

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of K.arnataka State Agricultural Produce
Processing and Export Corporation Limited (“the Holding Company”), and its subsidiary (the Holding Company
and its subsidiary together referred to as “the Group”), which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at
March 31, 2020; the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for
the year then ended, notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a
true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of
the Company as at March 31, 2020, and consolidated profit/loss, and its consolidated cash flows for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143( 10) of
the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matters

a) Note No.10, 19 and 21 of the consolidated financial statements reg;irding the balances in Trade payables,
trade receivables and Loans and advances are subject to confirmation.

b) Investment 006,90,000, 8% Redeemable Cumulative Preference Shares in Tropicool Foods Private Ltd.
amounting to Rs.1,69,00,000/- was due for redemption along with dividend in 2013-14. The same is pending
as on date.

c) Equity shares of 1,10,515 in Mysore Tobacco Limited is pending transfer on account of DEMAT procedure
although the same was approved by the state government on 07-06-2018.

d) The company is carrying forward an amount of Rs 80,76,557 as on Balance Sheet date, being GST input
recoverable from Department as per Note 22 under other head “current assets”. Since the Company is in the
business of providing cold storage facilities of agricultural produce, falling under Service Code No 9986,
which exempts the activity of storage of agricultural produce from GST levy. As the output is exempt from
GST, the question of availing input credit will be denied to the company. The input has to be written off in the
books. The Profit and the Current Assets are overstated to same extent.

e) The company had received a Demand Notice from Commercial Tax Department of Government of Karnataka
under Section 9(2) of the CST Act, 1956 and Section 39(1) and 36(1) of the KVAT Act,2003 demanding tax
arrears of Rs.9,75,222 and interest thereon of Rs.4,82,883 for the year 15-16. The same is pending and no
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proof that representation has been made or followed up has been produced. No provision is made in accounts,
as the company has represented that the said sales is export sales and not liable to CST- VAT under Central
Sales Tax Act.

f)  The company has been consistently applying a formula to bifurcate the amount ofJnterest earned on deposit
between the amount to be transferred to Government grants received and the amount to be considered as
income in Profit and Loss account. The formula requires review as to the basis adopted for application of
interest.

g) The company has not remitted Labour cess amounting to Rs 18,33,074 to Labour department.

h) EMDs, amounting to Rs 1,10,000, received from contractors for the years 2011 and 2013 have not been
returned.

i) Ason March 2020, excess TDS remitted amounting to Rs 1,31,083.56 is unreconciled pending recovery.

i) The management has represented that the company has yet to identify the beneficiary/ies in respect of an
amount of Rs 13,09,323 received from APEDA.

k) Underthe Government of Karnataka interest subsidy scheme, an excess interest subsidy, amounting to Rs
2,38.764/-, has been paid to Gayithramma.

I)  There are demands from the Income Tax department against the company in respect of Consolidated Financial
years 2009-10 to 2018-19 amounting to Rs 94,88,884.

The company has represented that though the company has got a favourable order from High court of
Karnataka, the Department has filed SLP before the Supreme Court challenging the Order.

However, the department has been adjusting refunds due to the company at regular intervals against the
demands raised by it together with interest under Section 220 of the Income Tax Act without considering the
High Court Order which is in favour of the company. The exact amount of adjustment is not ascertained and
is pending reconciliation

Fringe benefit tax, amounting to Rs 55,357, is pending reconciliation and no action has been taken to
complete assessment though the regulation has since been discontinued.

m) The company had through tender, allotted warehouse construction work to N B Construction at Belgaum.
Due to defective land title and litigation on the title to land, the land allotment was cancelled and hence, the
company cancelled the work order to B N Construction.

The contractor being the aggrieved party, preferred an appeal for arbitration and was awarded Rs 14.72 lakhs
as compensation. Not satisfied by the said award, the Contractor has preferred fresh appeal in AS76 /2019
dated 25/05/ 2019 in City Civil Court, Bangalore, claiming an amount of Rs 255,86,824 along with interest,
which is being contested by the company. No provision has been made in the accounts as the company has
represented that it is hopeful of a favourable decision.

n) Provision towards doubtful debts of Rs.7.74 lakhs created for trade receivables of Rs. 306.14 lakhs of
subsidiary are pending for more than 3 years and hence the profit is overstated to that extent.

o) The disclosure requirements of Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013 has not been adhered to in the
presentation of financial statements of the subsidiary company in respect of overdue loans of Rs.4,48,56,426/
- due to BBMP which are disclosed as long-term borrowings as against current liabilities. This has resulted
in overstatement of long-term borrowings and understatement of current liabilities of the subsidiary.

p) The subsidiary company does not follow a system of obtaining confirmation of balances in respect of trade
receivables, trade payables, deposits, claims recoverable from/payable to the various parties or other
government departments. Due to non-availability of confirmations with regard to the aforesaid balances,
impact of adjustments, if any, that may arise from the reconciliation and settlement of account balances
cannot be quantified.

q) As the subsidiary does not possess information of assessment of economic life of the fixed assets during
the year ended 31" March 2020, the impairment loss and provision thereof has not been made and the
consequential impact of adjustment, if any, on the financial statements of the subsidiary cannot be ascertained.

r)  The subsidiary company does not carry with it any proof of having made an effort to identify units covered
under MSMED Act, 2006 and hence the disclosures as called for under Schedule Il of the Companies Act,
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2013 and MSMED Act 2006 is currently not ascertainable.
Key Audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these consolidated financial statements, that give a true
and fair view of the financial position, financial performance of the company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the
Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. The respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act, for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgements and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, and implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

Other Matters

We did not audit the financial statements of the subsidiary. The financial statements of the subsidiary has been
audited by another auditor whose report has been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the
Consolidated Financial Statements, in so far as it relates to the amount and disclosures included in respect of
the subsidiary, and our report in terms of sub-sections (3) of section 143 of the Act insofar as it relates to the
aforesaid subsidiary is based solely on the report of the other auditor.

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements and our report on other legal and regulatory requirements
below, is not modified in respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditor.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those
books.

c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statements of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account.
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d) Inour opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read w/r 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Company as on 31st
March, 2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Company, none of the directors is disqualified
as on 31st March, 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

t)  With respect to the adequacy of financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in Annexure B ..

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

I. There are no pending litigations impacting the financial position of the company.

Il.  The companydid not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts including derivative
contracts.

lll. As no dividend has been declared or paid, the question of Transfer of amount/s to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company does not arise.

For Ganesh & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 000862S
Sd/-
(P. GANESH)
Place : Bangalore Membership Number : 091551
Date : 28th December 2020 UDIN : 20019551AAAAJP4383

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Consolidated
Financial Statements of Karnataka State Agricultural Produce Processing and Export
Corporation Limited

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

a) ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

b) Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the Group has adequate internal financial controls system in place
and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

c) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

d) Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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f)  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the Consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and -performance of the audit of the financial statements of the holding company
for which we are independent auditors. For the subsidiary included in the Consolidated financial statements,
which has been audited by other auditor, such other auditor remains responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

For Ganesh & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 000862S
Sd/-
(P. GANESH)
Place : Bangalore Membership Number : 091551
Date : 28th December 2020 UDIN : 20019551AAAAJP4383

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Consolidated
Financial Statements of Karnataka State Agricultural Produce Processing and Export
Corporation Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated financial statements of the company as of and for the year ended
march 31, 2020, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Karnataka State Agricultural
Produce Processing and Export Corporation Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls on Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of
its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.
Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal
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Financial Controls and, both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgments,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that:

1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets of the company;

2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
consolidated financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and

3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls on Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility
of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Holding Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2020, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Other Matters

Our aforesaid reports under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting insofar as it relates to the subsidiary is based on the report of
the auditors of such company.
For Ganesh & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 000862S
Sd/-
(P. GANESH)
Place : Bangalore Membership Number : 091551
Date : 28th December 2020 UDIN : 20019551AAAAJP4383
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PART - | BALANCE SHEET
KARNATAKA STATE AGRICULTURAL PRODUCE PROCESSING AND EXPORT CORPORATION LIMITED
#17, GENERALK.S. THIMAYYA ROAD, BANGALORE-25.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2020 '™ R"P**®)
PARTICULARS Note As at 31 March As at 31 March
No 2020 2019
I EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 Shareholders’ Funds
a. Share Capital 3 50,00,000 50,00,000
b. Reserve & Surplus 4 23,18,12,773 22,33,98,114
¢. Minority Shareholding - -
2 Share application money pending allotment - -
3 Non-Current Liabilities
a. Government Grants 5 1,20,26,30,276 1,19,76,72,274
b. Long Term Borrowings 6 4,48,56,426 4,39,15,917
c. Other Long Term Liabilities 7 9,563,588 13,21,656
d. Long Term Provisions 8 92,28,351 78,55,195
e. Defferred tax liabilities (net) 9 - -
4 Current liabilities
a. Trade payables 10 2,30,50,840 2,23,58,656
b. Other current liabilities 11 2,07,15,019 2,50,16,224
c. Short-term provisions 12 65,40,472 65,43,196
TOTAL 1,54,47,87,744 1,53,30,81,232
Il ASSETS
1 Non-current assets
a. Fixed assets
i) Tangible assets 13A 45,94,16,245 58,44,53,863
ii) Intangible assets 13B 2,19,84,346 2,19,55,318
iiiy Capital Works in Progress 14 13,47,83,583 4,74,82,983
b. Non-currentinvestments 15 1,90,05,150 1,90,05,150
c. Deffered tax assets (net) 16 55,08,446 45,40,664
d. Long-term loans and advances 17 21,59,589 18,26,698
2 Current assets
a. Inventories 18 57,213 18,65,268
b. Trade receivables 19 3,64,15,925 3,56,08,586
c. cash and cash equivalents 20 80,35,22,014 69,00,44,722
d. Short-term loans and advances 21 3,16,57,376 6,70,54,940
e. Other current assets 22 3,02,77,856 5,92,43,041
TOTAL 1,54,47,87,744 1,53,30,81,232
Notes 1-34 are an integral part of the finacial statements
For and on behalf of the Board As per our report of even date
Sd/- Sd/- For Ganesh & Co.
(B. Shivaraju) (Padmavathi) Chartered Accountants FRN: 000862S
Managing Director Director Sd/-
DIN No.08093976 DIN No.07262520 (Ganesh P)
Place : Bengaluru MRN: 019551
Date :28.12.2020
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PART -1l STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

KARNATAKA STATE AGRICULTURAL PRODUCE PROCESSING AND EXPORT CORPORATION LIMITED
#17, GENERALK.S. THIMAYYA ROAD, BANGALORE-25.

CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH, 2020

(B. Shivaraju)
Managing Director Director
DIN No.08093976 DIN No.07262520

Place : Bengaluru Date :28.12.2020

(Padmavathi)

Sd/-

PARTICULARS Note For the year ended For the year ended
No 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

I Revenue from operation 23 4,74,00,286 5,02,35,273
Il Other income 24 6,29,81,562 6,54,27,480
Ill Total Revenue ( I+l) 11,03,81,848 11,56,62,753
IV Expenses:

Cost of materials consumed 25 14,89,794 32,78,768

Purchase of material 26 64,56,781 16,50,311

Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods,

Work-in-Progress and Stock-in-Trade 27 18,08,055 (13,23,994)

Other Manufacturing Expenses 28 2,22,07,669 2,50,03,664

Employee benefits expenses 29 3,01,80,559 2,89,75,334

Finance costs 30 9,567,057 15,21,258

Depreciation and amortisation expenses 31 14,90,549 16,44,020

Other expenses 32 3,03,01,944 3,12,28,648

Total expenses (IV) 9,48,92,408 9,19,78,010
V Profit before exceptional and

Extraordinary Items and Tax (llI-1V) 1,54,89,440 2,36,84,743
VI Exceptional items - 74,99,264
VIl Profit before Extraordinary

Items and Tax (V - V1) 1,54,89,440 1,61,85,479
VIII Extraordinary items - -
IX Profit before tax ( VII - VIII ) 1,61,85,479 1,61,85,479
X Tax expenses

1) Current tax 34,06,430

2) Deferred tax (9,67,782) 15,95,925 _(15,64,095) 18,42,335
X1 Profit (Loss) for the period from

continuing operations (IX - X) 1,38,93,515 1,43,43,144
Xl Profit/(Loss) from discontinuing operation - -
Xl Tax expenses of discontinuing operation - -
XIV Profit/(Loss) from discontinuing operation - -

(after tax) ( XII - XIII')
XV Profit (Loss) for the period ( XI + XIV) 1,38,93,515 1,43,43,144

1) Relating to Parent Company 97,72,714 1,40,16,616

2) Relating to Minority Shareholders 41,20,801 3,26,528
XVIEarning per equity share:

1) Basic 277.87 286.86

2) Diluted - -

For and on behalf of the Board As per our report of even date
Sd/- Sd/- For Ganesh & Co.

Chartered Accountants FRN: 000862S

(Ganesh P)
MRN: 019551
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KARNATAKA STATE AGRICULTURAL PRODUCE PROCESSING AND EXPORT CORPORATION LIMITED
#17, GENERALK.S. THIMAYYA ROAD, BANGALORE-25.

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

Particulars For the year ended
31 March 2020

A. Cash flow from operating activities

Net Profit / (Loss) before extraordinary items and tax 1,54,89,440
Adjustments: Depreciation and amortisation 14,90,549

Interest Paid 9,40,509
Interest income on Bank deposits (1,01,96,797)
Operating cash flow before working capital changes 77,23,700

Changes in working capital:
Adjustments for (increase) / decrease in operating assets:

Trade Receivables (8,07,339)
Inventories 18,08,055
Loans and Advances 3,50,64,672
Current Assets 2,89,65,185
Trade Payables 6,92,184
Other Current Liabilities (43,01,206)
Provisions (2,724)
Cash generated from operations 6,91,42,527
Tax paid, net (25,63,707)
Net cash flow from /(used in) operating activities (A) 6,65,78,820

B. Cash flow from investing activities
Sale/Purchase of fixed assets and capital advances 10,86,123
Investments in Shares -
Investments in Bank Deposits (6,95,41,367)
Interest received 1,01,96,797
Net cash flow from/ (used in) investing activities (B) (5,82,58,447)

C. Cash flow from financing activities
Net flows from Grants 3,46,10,464
Payment of Longterm Liabilities 19,45,597
Interest paid (9,40,509)
Dividend paid -
Net cash flow from/ (used in) financing activities (C) 3,56,15,552
Net cash flow during the period (A+B+C) 4,39,35,925
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 30,51,71,871
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 34,91,07,796
Other bank balances 45,44,14,218
Cash and cash balance as per the Balance Sheet 80,35,22,014

Notes:

1. The above Cash Flow Statement has been compiled from and is based on the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2020 and the relative
Profitand Loss Account for the year ended on that date.

2. The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared in consonance with the requirements of Accounting Standard (AS) -3 on Cash
Flow Statements issued by the ICA of India and the reallocations required for the purpose are as made by the company.

3. Previous year's figures have been regrouped/reclassified wherever necessary to conform with current year.

For and on behalf of the Board As per our report of even date
Sd/- Sd/- For Ganesh & Co.
(B. Shivaraju) (Padmavathi) Chartered Accountants FRN: 000862S
Managing Director Director Sd/-
DIN No.08093976 DIN No.07262520 (Ganesh P)
Place : Bengaluru Date :28.12.2020 MRN: 019551
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KARNATAKA STATE AGRICULTURAL PRODUCE PROCESSING AND EXPORT CORPORATION LIMITED
Registered Office : # 17, GENERALK.S. THIMAYYA ROAD, BANGALORE-25.
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AS ON 31.03.2020
NOTE -1 CORPORATION INFORMATION

The company was incorporated as on 22nd April 1996 as a Karnatak State Government Company for the creation
of cold storage facilities for agricultural crops.

The company has a subsidiary - Karnataka Compost Development Corporation Limited

As per Government order dated 9th August 2018, 26,000 shares of Karnataka Compost Development Corporation
Limited was transferred from Karnataka Agro industries Corporation Limited to the company and the said company
became a subsidiary

NOTE - 2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
A Basis of Accounting :

The Financial Statements have been prepared on accrual basis under historical cost convention in accordance
with the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and in
accordance with the Accounting Standards specified by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

B Principles of consolidation:

a. The consolidation of accounts have been prepared based on line-by-line consolidation by adding together
the book values of like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses as per the accounts of the
parent company and its subsidiaries duly certified by the auditors of the respective companies.

b. Intra-group balances, intra-group transactions and the unrealized profit on stocks arising out of intra-
group transactions have been eliminated

c. The consolidated accounts have been prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions
and other events in similar circumstances and are presented to the extent possible, in the same manner
as the parent company's individual accounts.

d. The excess of cost of parent company's investments over parent company's portion of equity in subsidiaries
is treated as goodwill and in case where the parent company's share in subsidiaries' equity is more than
the cost of investment in subsidiaries, the excess is treated as capital reserve.

e. S Name of the Company % holding as on % holding as on
No. 31.03.2020 31.03.2019
1. Karnataka Compost Development Corporation Limited 52% 52%

C Revenue Recognition :

a Anyexpenditure incured on project preparation which will be reimbursed by Government of Karnataka
will be charged to expenses in the year of incurrence of such expenses. Any reimbursement of the
above from Government of Karnataka will be accounted on receipts basis.

b Interestincome has been accounted on accrual basis as per the certificates issued by the bank.

¢ The interest earned on unutilised grant/subsidy kept as bank fixed deposit is transferred to grant and
treated as Capital reserves However, the Company has not invested in separate FDRs as per the
different grants received. The investment is made in FDRs out of the pooled funds received from different
grants. The interest earned on the pooled FDRs has been apportioned to each of the grant/subsidy
based on the quantum of each grant/subsidy.

d i) Manufactured Products : Revenue on sale of manufactured products is recognized when significant
risks and rewards of ownership of products are passed on the cutomers.

i) Traded Products: Sales, wherein goods are delivered directly to the company’s cutomers, by the
Company’s approved Vendors, are recognized as and when the Delivery Challan indicating the
quantity of goods supplied is intimated to the company by the company’s approved Vendor.
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e Use of Estimates:

In preparing the Financial Statements in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, Management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent Liabilities as at the date of Financial Statements
and amounts of revenue and expenses during the reported period. Acutal results could differ from those
estimates. Any revision to such estimates is recognized in the period the same is determined.

f  Prior period adjustments, exceptional items, extraordinary items and changes in accounting policies
having material impact on the financial affairs of the Company are disclosed

D Government Grants and Assistance :

a. Grantreceived by the company from the Government of Karnataka for the activities of the company has
been treated as capital grants and included under Reserves and Surplus since the same is in the nature
of promoter’s contribution.

b. Grants received towards acquisition of Fixed Assets or for execution of projects are shown under Deferred
Government Grants. The grants so received are treated as deferred revenue income and the depreciation
attributable to the extent of the grant/subsidy received is adjusted from total depreciation debited to
Profit and Loss Account by a debit to the specific grant/subsidy it relates to over the useful life of the
asset.

c. Power Consumption subsidy is accounted for on cash basis.

d. Grants and assistances received but not yet utilised are shown separately under Grant from the
Government of Karnataka

e. Revenue Grants received for the execution of projects is recognised as revenue to the extent utilised.
E Fixed Assets :

a. FixedAssets including Capital Work in Progress are stated at cost which includes all expenses directly
attributable to bringing the assets to their working condition.

b. Depreciation on Fixed Assets is provided on pro-rata basis on useful life of the asset at the rates which
are in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013. In respect of fixed assets acquired
out of grants and subsidies from the Government and other agencies, the depreciation attributable to
the extent of the grant/subsidy received is adjusted from total depreciation debited to profit and loss
account by a debit to specific grants/subsidy it relates to.

F Inventories

i)  Raw Materials: Inventories of raw materials are stated at lower of costand net realizable value, determined
on weighted average basis. Cost for this purpose means purchase price plus any expenses incurred to
bring them to its present location and condition.

i)  Work-in-progress: Work-in-progress is valued at cost. Cost for this purpose comprises of raw material
cost and appropriate share of labour and overheads.

ii) Finished Goods: Finished goods are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost for this purpose
comprise of raw material cost and appropriate share of labour and overheads.

iv) Packing Material and other consumables are charged off in the year of purchase.
G Investments:

Long term investments are stated at cost. Provision is made if in the opinion of the management, diminution
in value of investments is other than temporary in nature. Current Investments are stated at lower of cost or
market value. Dividend on Preference Shares will be recognised on receipt basis.

H Employee Benefits :

Short Term Employee Benefit is recognized as an expenses in the Profit & Loss Account of the year in which
the related service is rendered Post employment and other Long Term Employee Benefits are provided for
the Account in the following manner.

a. Contribution to Provident Fund is accounted on accrual basis.
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b. The Company contributes to a Group gratuity scheme of Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC) for
future payment of retirement gratuities to its employees. The premium paid thereon is debited to profit
and loss account. The premium has been computed so as to cover the company’s liability under the
gratuity scheme in respect of all its employees at the end of their future anticipated service with the
Company.

c. Leave Salary and Pension contribution in respect of officials on deputation have been made as per
service rules of their respective parent organisations.

d. Provision towards leave salary of employees has been made.
I Taxes on Income:

a. Income Tax is computed in accordance with Accounting Standard (AS-22 ‘Accounting for taxes on
income) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Tax expenses are accounted for in
the same period to which the revenue and expenses relate. The current tax is determined on the
amount of tax payable in respect of taxable income for the year.

b. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for the future tax consequences attributable to timing
differences between the financial statements carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and
their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the enacted or
substantially enacted tax rates as on the balance sheet date. Deferred tax asset is recognised and
carried forward when it is reasonably certain that sufficient taxable profits will be available in future
against which deferred tax assets can be realised.

J  Foreign Currency Transaction :

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the rate of exchange prevailing on the date of transaction. All
exchange differences are dealt within profit and loss account. Current assets and Current liabilities in foreign
currency outstanding at the year end are translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the close of the year
and resultant gains/losses are recognised in the profit and loss account.

K  Proposed Divident

Dividend recommended by the Board of Directors is provided for, in the Accounts pending Shareholder’s
approval.

L Contingent Liabilities

a) Provisions are recognized in terms of Accounting Standard (AS-29) - ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities
and Contingent assets’, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, where there is a
present legal or statutory obligation as a result of past events, where it is probable that there will be
outflow of resources to settle the obligation and when a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation
can be made.

b) Contingent Liabilities are recognized only when there is a possible obligation arising from past events
due to occurrence or non occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control
of the Company where any present obligation cannot be measured in terms of future outflow of resources
or where a reliable estimates of the obligation cannot be made. Obligations are assessed on an on
going basis and only those having a largely probable outflow of resources are provided for.

c) Contingent Assets are not recognized in the Financial Statements

M Cash Flow Statement

Cash Flow Statement has been prepared in accordance with the Indirect Method prescribed in Accounting
Standard. The Cash flows from Operating, Investing and Financing Activities of the Company are segregated.
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NOTE - 3 SHARE CAPITAL

Particulars As at 31 As at 31
March 2020 March 2019
Rs. Rs.
a. Authorised Share Capital

5,00,000(p.y. 5,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 100/- each 5,00,00,000 5,00,00,000

Issued, Subscribed, Called up and Paid up :
50,000 (p.y. 50000) Equity Shares of Rs.100/- each fully Paid up 50,00,000 50,00,000
Total 50,00,000 50,00,000

c. Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding :

b. The Company has only one class of shares referred to equity shares having a par value of Rs 100/- each.
Holder of equity shares entitled to vote as per section 87 of Companies Act 2013.

Particulars Equity Shares
Number Rs.
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year. 50,000 50,00,000
Shares Issued during the year nil nil
Shares bought back during the year nil nil
Shares outstanding at the end of the year. 50,000 50,00,000
d. Shares held by each Shareholder holding more than 5% Shares
Name of shareholder 31.03.2020
No % of Holding
Government of Karnataka 49,998 100
e. Equity Shares:
Particulars 2019-20 2018-19
Fully paid up pursuant to Contract(s) without payment
being received in cash NIL NIL
Fully paid up by way of bonus shares NIL NIL
Shares bought back NIL NIL
NOTE -4 RESERVES AND SURPLUS
a. Capital Reserve :
(Represents Government Grants towards Share Capital
and for acquisition of non depreciable assets under
various schemes)
Opening balance 5,14,16,928 11,75,15,214
Less: Written back 54,78,856 6,60,98,286
Closing balance A 4,59,38,072 5,14,16,928
b. General Reserve :
Opening balance 82,12,808 68,46,520
Add: Transferred from surplus 9,77,271 13,66,288
B 91,90,079 82,12,808
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c. Surplus:

Opening balance 18,13,07,344 16,98,62,569
Add: Net Profit/(Net loss) for the Current year 97,72,713 1,40,16,616
Less: Proposed Dividends - 10,00,000
Less: Tax on Distributed Profits - 2,05,553
Less: Trasferred to General Reserve 9,77,271 13,66,288

19,01,02,786 18,13,07,344
Add: Minority Interest in subsidiary (1,34,18,165) (1,75,38,966)
Closing balance C 17,66,84,622 16,37,68,378
TOTAL (A+B+C=D) 23,18,12,773 22,33,98,114

3 a) Grant-in-aid received by the Company amounting to Rs.25 lakhs from the Government of Karnataka
(Rs12.50 Lakhs each vide G.O. Dt.24.7.96 and 15.3.97) for the activities of the company has been
treated as Capital grant under Reserves & Surplus since the same is in the nature of promoters’
contribution.

b) During the year 10% of net profit has been transferred to General Reserve.(previous year 10% )

NOTE - 5 GRANTS FROM GOVERNMENT OF KARNATAKA

1) Grants from Government of Karnataka for Specified Assets

a) Deferred Government Grants
Cold Storage projects - Grants from Government
(Visveswaraiah Industrial Trade Centre under ASIDE Scheme,

Karnataka State Horticulture Mission Agency, Rastriya Krushi
Vikasa Yojana & APEDA)

Openining Balance 54,40,24,554 41,57,84,900
Add : Current year Transfer 2,15,86,486 15,11,75,190
Less : Partially completed Projects capitalised in

earlier year reversed 12,16,19,052 -
Add : Depreciation reversed on the above reversal 50,139 -
Less : Depreciation Absosrbed 2,35,78,094 2,29,35,536
Closing Balance 42,04,64,033 54,40,24,553

(i) The Government of Karnataka under Rastriya Krushi Vikas Yojana has released grants for creating
Wherehouse (cold/hot storage facilities in Northern Karnataka districts and in Devenahally near
Bangalore

(i) The accounts of the completed projects are maintained separately and the depreciation on the
facility is fully absorbed.

b) Government Grants (Projects not Completed)

Grant from Government of Karnataka under Rastriya Krushi
Vikas Yojana / APEDA for creation of Cold Chain Facilities

Opening Balance 42,97,80,006 32,38,43,237
Add : Assistance from VTPC/RKVY - 15,00,00,000
Less : Assistance from APEDA for KUDUCHI Project 57,72,451 -
Add : Assistance from APEDA Humnabad Bidar project and TAS - 2,44,25,868
Add : Written back from Capital Reserve due to Cancellation of land - 6,60,98,286
Add : Interest earned 1,90,77,966 1,65,87,805
Add : Reversed from Deferred Government Grants 12,16,19,052 -

Less : Amount returned to APEDA / RKVY - -

119



KARNATAKA STATE AGRICULTURAL PRODUCE PROCESSINGAND EXPORT CORPORATION LIMITED

Less : Assets Created 2,15,86,486 15,11,75,190
Closing Balance b 54,31,18,087 42,97,80,006
Gross Total (a+b) 96,35,82,120 97,38,04,560

2) Grant from Government of Karnataka
a) To KABDC for conducting various Agri Business Programmes

Opening Balance 1,40,17,004 1,05,74,729\
Add : Additional Grant Received 2,00,00,000 99,00,000
Add : Security Deposit Received Back 2,90,000 -
Less : Payments made by KABDC 88,56,816 64,57,725
Closing Balance 2,54,50,188 1,40,17,004

Karnataka Agri Business Development Corporation, a unit of the company, has received grant from the
Government for various agribusiness programmes. The same is accounted separately.

b) Assistance From APEDA for KUDUCHI Project

Opening Balance 58,45,709 63,45,709
Add : Additional Grant Received - -
Add : Transfer from other Government Grants 57,72,451 -
Less : Payments for KUDACHI Project 1,16,03,363 5,00,000
Closing Balance b 14,797 58,45,709

The Company has received grant from Raibag Associates for the Kudachi Project and the payments are
being handled by the company.

c) Grants from Government of Karnataka (Purchase of MTC Shares)

Opening Balance 7,64,62,136 7,27,36,450
Add : Additional Grant Received - -
Add : Interest earned 33,94,160 37,25,686
Less : Payments - -
Closing Balance 7,98,56,296 7,64,62,136

The Government of Karnataka vide GO No AD/28/APD/2013 BANGALORE DATED 25-8-2014 had
released grant of Rs. 859.00 lakh towards the purchase of 58079 shares at Rs. 1479/- per share by the
Company relating to private share holders of Mysore Tobacco Company Limited. Accordingly, the
Company had purchased 20543 shares from the concerned private share holders by paying Rs.
3,03,83,097/-.For the balance shares of 37536, time limit for purchase of shares was given up to 31-3-
2017 for the private share holders. Subsequently, the State Government had amended the earlier
Government order dated 25-8-2014 and ordered for procurement of shares by KAPPEC on behalf of the
State Government and shares allotted to the Governor of Karnataka vide Go No AD/28/APD/2013
BANGALORE DATED 27-8-2016. The interest of Rs.33,94,160 (P.Y 37,25,686) has been accounted
under the said ledger in Government Grants, The shares purchased has been transfered in the name of
Governor of Karnataka Vide Share Certificate No. 6502 dt. 16/08/2017.

d) Grants from Government of Karnataka - Interest Subsidy Scheme

Opening Balance 1,27,95,398 1,23,68,109
Add : Additional Grant Received 2,25,00,000 -
Add : Interest earned 5,67,989 6,33,516
Less : Interest Subsidy Paid 2,27,42,907 2,06,227
Less : Payments - -
Closing Balance d 1,31,20,480 1,27,95,398

The Government of Karnataka had released funds amounting to Rs 5.50 Crore for Interest subsidy
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scheme,payable to Farmers, for construction of warehouses. The amount has been temporarily deposited
in the bank. An amount of Rs. 5,00,00,000 was transferred in 2017-18 to ITF 2018, An amount of
Rs.2,27,42,907 has been released as interest subsidy to eligible farmers for warehouse construction.The
balance amount continues to earn interest.
e) GOK - Organic Federation
Opening Balance 8,51,28,069 12,49,75,325
Add : Additional Grant Received 10,30,180 -
Add : Interest earned 51,04,670 95,17,170
Less : Payments 75,00,000 4,93,64,426
Closing Balance e 8,37,62,919 8,51,28,069
The Government of Karnataka Organic Federation has routed its grant for the development of regional
organic and millet federation through the company. An additional grant of Rs.10,30,180 was received
during the year.
f) National Trade Fair - 2017
Opening Balance 95,41,633 1,01,24,245
Add : Additional Grant Received - -
Less : Payments - 5,82,612
Closing balance f 95,41,633 95,41,633
d) International Trade Fair O&M - 2018
Opening Balance 10,20,640 3,53,66,212
Add : Additional Grant Received 11,984 8,13,925
Less : Payments for International Trade Fair 2018 g - 3,51,59,497
Closing Balance 10,32,624 10,20,640
h) International Trade Fair O&M - 2019
Opening Balance 1,16,48,568 -
Add : Additional Grant Received 1,00,80,465 10,17,05,546
Less : Payments for International Trade Fair 2019 48,83,864 9,00,56,978
Closing Balance h 1,68,45,169 1,16,48,568
i) GOK - Shoonya Bandavala
Opening Balance - -
Add : Additional Grant Received 71,74,357 -
Less : Payments
Closing Balance i 71,74,357 -
The Government of Karnataka under the Shhonya Bandavala Scheme has routed its grant of Rs. 71,74,357
for the development of regional organic and millet farming through the company.
j)  Grant for Kannahally Compost Plant
Opening Balance 50,00,000 50,00,000
Less: Transfer/Adjustment during the Year 50,00,000 -
Closing Balance j - 50,00,000
k) Grantin Aid from BBMP
Opening Balance 24,08,557 -
Add: Grant Received during the Year 22,49,694 24,08,557
Less Transfer/Adjustment during the Year 24,08,557 -
Closing Balance k 22,49,694 24,08,557
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Total (a to k) 23,90,48,156 22,38,67,713
Grand Total 4(1) + 4(2) 1,20,26,30,276 1,19,76,72,274
NOTE - 6 LONG TERM BORROWINGS
Unsecured
Loans from BBMP 4,48,56,426 1,32,00,000
Loans from Others (KUIDFC) - 1,61,00,000
Interest due on KUIDFC Loan - 1,46,15,917
TOTAL 4,48,56,426 4,39,15,917
NOTE -7 OTHER LONG TERM LIABILITIES
Others
Transport Subsidy Payable 8,15,886 8,15,886
EMD Received on Tenders 1,00,000 1,00,000
Security Deposits Received from Dealers 37,702 4,05,770
TOTAL 9,53,588 13,21,656
NOTE - 8 LONG TERM PROVISIONS
Provision for Employee Benefits
Union Fund - 1,315
Provision for Gratuity 61,22,109 58,77,800
Provision for Leave Encashment 31,06,242 19,76,080
TOTAL 92,28,351 78,55,195
NOTE -9 DEFFERED TAX LIABLITY (NET)
Timing Difference
Deferred Tax Asset (Net) - -
Less/Add: Tax on difference in IT and Books Depreciation - Asset - -
Deferred Tax Asset (Net) - -
NOTE - 10 TRADE PAYABLE
Total outstanding dues to Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises - -
Total outstanding dues Creditors other than SME. 2,30,50,840 2,23,58,656
2,30,50,840 2,23,58,656
NOTE -11 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Other Liabilities 88,33,568 1,28,34,765
Advances received from customers 1,14,73,271 1,19,88,013
KABDC 4,08,179 1,93,446
2,07,15,018 2,50,16,224
NOTE - 12 SHORT TERM PROVISIONS
Provision for Earned Leave 53,44,053 52,03,697
Provision for Gratuity 11,96,229 1,33,671
Benevolent Fund 190 275
Provison for Dividend - 10,00,000
Provision for Tax on Distributed Profits - 2,05,553
65,40,472 65,43,196
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FIXED ASSETS : 13

NOTE - 13A TANGIBLE ASSETS Amounts in Rs.
GROSS BLOCK (AT COST) ACCUULATED DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK (AT COST)

PARTICULARS Opening Additions Deletions/ Closing Opening Addition Deletions/ Closing

balance as during the Adjustments* | balance as balance as Forthe | Adjustmns* | balance as ason ason

on01.04.19 Year duringtheYr | on31.03.20 on01.04.19 Year duringYr | on31.03.20 31.03.20 31.03.19
Land -Lease cum Sale 2,76,91,753 - - 2,76,91,753, - - - - 2,76,91,753 2,76,91,753
Buildings 38,79,02,107 2,05,16,486| 7,36,85,853 33,47,32,740 3,87,44,793 96,02,961 - 48347755 | 28,63,84,985 | 34,91,57,314
Plant & Machinery 27,24,16,912 13,81,643| 4,82,44,842 22,55,53,713 7,10,55,004| 1,4491,977| 50,139 8,54,96,842 14,00,56,871 20,13,61,908
Comp & Peripherals 21,77,186 E - 21,77,186 20,60,245 35,288 - 20,95,533 81,653 1,16,941
Furniture & Fixture 17,39,976 E - 17,39,976 14,07,509 62,552 - 14,70,061 2,69,915 3,32,467
Office Equipment 16,43,023 E - 16,43,023 12,43,548 1,18,193 - 13,61,741 2,81,282 3,99,475
Vehicles-Cars 79,05,558 - - 79,05,558 49,59,150 551,916 - 55,11,066 23,94,492 29,46,408
Refregirated van 57,59,742 E - 57,59,742 33,12,145 1,92,303 - 35,04,448 22,55,294 24,47 597
TOTAL 70,72,36,257|  2,18,98,129| 12,19,30,695 60,72,03,691 12,27,82,393| 2,50,55,191| 50,139 14,77,87,446 | 4594,16,245 | 58,44,53,863

NOTE - 13B INTANGIBLE ASSETS

GROSS BLOCK (AT COST) ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK (AT COST)

PARTICULARS Opening Additions Deletions/ Closing Opening Addition Deletions/ Closing

balance as during the Adjustments* |  balance as balance as Forthe |Adjustments] balance as ason ason

on01.04.19 Year during theYear| on31.03.20 on01.04.19 Year during Year| on31.03.20 31.03.20 31.03.19
Computer Software 81,526 42,480 } 124,006 80,493 13452 - 93,945 30,061 1,033
Goodwill 2,19,54,285 2,19,54,285 ; S| 21954285 | 2,19,54,285
TOTAL 2,20,35,811 42,480 . 2,20,78,291 80,493 13452| - 93,045 |  219.84,346 |  2,19,55,318
GRANDTOTAL | 72,92,72,oss| 2,19,40,609 | 12,19,30,695 | 62,92,81,982 12,28,62,886' 2,50,68,643' 50,139 | 14,78,81,391 | 48,14,00,591 | 60,64,00,181
Previous Year Total | 62,57,04,ooe| 15,19,88,063 | 6,60,98,286 | 68,34,77,783 9,82,83,329| 2,45,79,557 | . | 12,28,62,885 | 58,87,30,897 | 52,56,34,209

*Reversal of An amount of Rs 7,18,91,478 under Building, and Rs 3,83,01,211 under Plant & Machinery of Humnabad Projectand
Vijayapura project due to non completion/non handing over of project and Rs 17,94,375 under head Building and Rs 96,31,988 under
head Plant & Machinery of ACR Kudachi Project as the same is not the asset of the company.

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Rs Rs

NOTE - 14 CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS
a) Poojenahally 50,81,243 45,31,363
b) Hubli-Hot Water Treatment - 2,05,16,486
c) Work in Progress KTPP ACT Gadag Cold Storage 9,39,584 9,39,584
d) Work in Progress - ACR Kudachi Project - 1,77,000
e) Work in Progress - ACR Poojenahalli Project - 5,49,880
f) WIP-KSWC-HUMNABAD (RKVY) 1,64,92,670 1,64,92,670
g) WIP-KSWC-VIJAYAPURA (RKVY) 3,83,01,211 -
h) Work in Progress - Humnbad 7,39,68,875 -
i) Work in Progress - Processing Machinery - 42,76,000
Total 13,47,83,583 4,74,82,983

NOTE - 15 NON - CURRENT INVESTMENT
Long Term Investment in Shares- at Cost, Unquoted & fully paid up

a 1,00,000 (p.y. 70,000) Equity Shares Rs.10/- each
of International Flower Auction Bangalore Ltd., (face value) 10,00,000 10,00,000
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b. 16,90,000 (p.y. 16,90,000) 8% Redeemable Cumulative Preference
Shares at Rs 10/- each of Tropicool Foods Private Ltd., (face value)

c. Purchase of The Mysore Tobacco Company Limited.
11000 Equity Share of Rs. 10 each (face value)

Total
NOTE -16 DEFFERED TAX ASSET (NET)
Timing Difference
Deferred Tax Asset (Net)
Less/Add: Tax on difference in Income Tax and Books Adjustments
Deferred Tax Asset (Net) Total
NOTE - 17 LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
Unsecured and Considered Good
a) Balance with Government Authorities-TDS Receivables
b)  Security Deposits
c) Loans &Advances
d) Balance with Government Authorities-GST Credit
TOTAL
NOTE - 18 INVENTORIES
(At Lower of Cost and Net Realisable Value)
a) Raw Materials
b) Finished Goods
TOTAL
NOTE - 19 TRADE RECEIVABLE
Trade Receivable (Considered good)
Outstanding for a period exceeding Six Months
Outstanding for a period less than Six Months
Less: Provision for doubtful debts
Total
NOTE - 20 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
a) Cashin hand
b) Bank balances with Scheduled Banks:
i) In Current Accounts
ii) In Saving Accounts
iii) In saving Accounts KABDC
vi) In Dividend Account
v) In Fixed Deposits
Total
NOTE - 21 SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
(Secured/Unsecured, considered good)
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received
a) Secured
b) Unsecured (other unsecured, considered good)
c) Other Advances

1,69,00,000

11,05,150

1,90,05,150

45,40,664
9,67,782

55,08,446

10,11,217
6,28,498

5,19,874

21,59,589

57,213

57,213

3,17,38,795
54,51,236
7,74,106

3,64,15,925

1,04,087

3,66,22,014
28,64,96,781
2,58,48,440
36,473
45,44,14,218

80,35,22,014

1,02,69,465

1,69,00,000

11,05,150

1,90,05,150

29,76,569
15,64,095

45,40,664

8,39,948
6,28,498

3,58,252

18,26,698

18,65,268

18,65,268

3,23,70,801
32,37,785

3,56,08,586

21,344

4,66,96,612
24,41,95,548
1,42,22,213
36,154
38,48,72,851

69,00,44,722

4,63,73,507
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d) Deposits 27,60,881 27,69,116
e) Tax paid in advance/TDS (Net of Provision) 1,85,71,673 1,78,56,960
f) Fringe benefit Tax paid in advance (Net of Provision) 55,357 55,357
Total 3,16,51,674 6,70,32,940
NOTE -22 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
a) Prepaid Expenses 4,28,886 4,68,959
b) Interest on IT Refund Receivable 26,880 26,880
c) Interest acrued but not due on Fixed Deposits 2,16,62,818 5,26,27,182
d) Department of Agriculture 82,715 82,715
e) Duties and taxes 80,76,557 60,37,306
Total 3,02,77,856 5,92,43,041
NOTES -23 REVENUE FROM OPERATION
Cold storage charges 3,20,81,536 3,74,66,587
Other Operating Revenues (Stall Booking Charges) 1,68,791 61,40,821
Manufacturing Goods - Organic Manure 79,61,342 47,41,795
Trading Goods - Compost sale from BBMP Plants 71,88,617 18,86,070

KABDC - Training Charges - -
Total 4,74,00,286 5,02,35,273
NOTES -24 OTHER INCOME

Interest from Banks (Gross) 3,83,41,582 3,85,93,980

Less : Interest on Government grants, Apeda/RKVY
subsidy, GABIM fund, MTC, Intrest Subsidy Scheme
and KSHMA transferred to respective A/c

shown in the Balance Sheet 2,81,44,785 1,01,96,797 3,04,64,177  81,29,803
Funds Received from BBMP 4,04,45,221 5,72,64,443
Interest on Electricity Board Deposit 45,199
GST input tax credited 3,50,186
Amount not payable 1,19,28,213
Miscellaneous Income 15,946 33,234
TOTAL 6,29,81,562 6,54,27,480
NOTE -25 COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED
Opening Stock - -
Add: Purchases 14,89,794 32,78,768
14,89,794 32,78,768
Less: Closing Stock - -
Cost of Materials Consumed 14,89,794 32,78,768
NOTE - 25a RAW MATERIALS CONSUMED
For Compost Unit :
Culture for Smell Control 14,40,586 31,57,840
Packing Materials 49,208 1,20,928
Total 14,89,794 "~ 32,78,768
NOTE - 26 PURCHASE OF STOCK FROM BBMP
City Compost 64,56,781 16,50,311
Total 64,56,781 ©16,50,311
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NOTE - 27 CHANGES IN INVENTORY OF FINISHED GOODS
Inventory at the end of the Year :
Finished goods
Total
Inventory at the beginning of the Year
Finished goods
Total
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventory
NOTE -28 OTHER MANUFACTURING EXPENSES
500 TPD Processing Machinery Maintaince
Plant and Machinery Maintenance Expenses
Power, Fuel and Water
Production and Labour Contract
Transportation Charges
Vermi Compost Production Expenses
Total
NOTE -29 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
Salary & Allowances, Exgratia & Other Contribution
Managing Director Salary
Contribution to EPF
Gratuity premium paid LIC
Earned Leave account
TOTAL
NOTE - 30 FINANCE COST
Bank Charges
Interest on Borrowings
TOTAL
NOTE - 31 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSES
Depreciation
Less : Absorbed from Government Grants
TOTAL
NOTE - 32 OTHER EXPENSES
Cold Storage Expenses:
Power & Water Charges
Maintenance & Consumables
Advertisement Expenses
Exhibition and Business Promotion Expenses
Travelling and Conveyance
Telephone Charges
Directors’ Sitting Fees
Rent
Office Maintenance

1,13,70,605

2,62,38,409

11,87,513

57,213

57,213

18,65,268

18,65,268
18,08,055

24,11,209
36,84,813
89,80,388
70,55,808
67,542
7,910

2,22,07,669

2,62,38,409
33,44,977
1,85,000
412,173

3,01,80,559

16,548
9,40,509

9,57,057

2,50,68,643
2,35,78,094

14,90,549

1,25,58,118
5,21,257
6,69,915
6,71,852
1,93,516
22,500
2,12,400
60,860

18,65,268

18,65,268

541,274

541,274
(13,23,994)

73,02,504
1,12,06,596
63,66,890
1,27,674

2,50,03,664

2,20,09,729

2,20,09,729
42,52,620
5,13,923
21,99,062

2,89,75,334

1,04,559
14,16,699

15,21,258

2,45,79,556
2,29,35,536

16,44,020

88,13,722

9,09,280

97,23,002
50,000
18,999
8,50,827
1,89,362

12,500
2,12,400
1,09,037
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Printing and Stationary 3,71,850 2,93,928

Rates and Taxes 60,364 69,605

Refreshment Expenses 6,86,772 7,75,918

Books and Periodicals 9,831 20,053

Professional Charges 18,96,185 12,95,979

Postage & Courier charges 26,675 23,636

Insurance 27,89,825 34,38,145

Service Outsourcing Charges 38,09,821 39,87,349

Pooja Expenses 16,200 27,721

Repairs and Maintenance: 18,04,143 10,87,612

Audit fee :

For Statutory audit 1,07,100 59,000
For Tax Audit - -
For Other Services 10,000 10,000
Out of pocket expenses - 1,17,100 - 69,000

Electricity, water & Generator Expenses 76,426 63,360

Misc Expenses 1,430 27,462

Amount No longer Receivables 22,000 -

Doutfull Debts 7,74,106 -

Ram Materials not usable - 18,47,290

ITC Reversed(GST) 26,20,022 18,96,352

Interest on TDS & DDT Tax Paid 2,31,061 38,130

Chairman Expenditures 49,265 5,67,508

Internet & Security 15,608 7,183

Meeting Expenses 12,842 2,360

Remuneration to Vice Chairman (Car) 1,75,612

Hamali Charges 2,30,033

Loss on Land 41,18,286

TOTAL 3,03,01,944 " 3,12,28,648
NOTE - 33 GENERAL NOTES
a) Earnings in Foreign Currency : 2019-20 2018-2019
Exports (FOB) Rs. NIL Rs. NIL
b) i) Anamountof Rs 34,207/- has been deducted/adjusted towards arrears of IncomeTax for the assesment
year 2002-03 which has been disputed by the company.

i) The Company has filed the revised return for the assesment year 2002-03 claiming refund of
Rs 91,207/- which was not considered by the department at first instance. However the representation
made by the company in this regard is pending.

(i) The Company has received notice from Commercial Tax Department for the financial year 2015-16
demanding an amount of Rs 14,58,405 which is being contested as the same relates to export transaction
not liable to VAT

(iv) The Income tax website indicates set off of the refunds due to the company which has to reconciled.
After set off of claims by the Department, the balance claim amount to Rs 94,88,884 which has not be
provided for in the books
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(vy The company had, through tender, allotted warehouse construction work to N B Construction at Belgaum.
Due to litigation in title to land, the company has cancelled the work order. The contractor preferred
appeal for arbitration and was awarded Rs 14.72 lakhs. Not satisfied by the order the Contractor has
preferred appeal no AS76 /2019 dated 25/05/2019 in City civil court Bangalore claiming an amount of Rs
2,55,86,824 along with interest which is being contested by the company.

c) The Company has carried forward Rs 80,76,557 as GST input recoverable in future years inspite of the fact
that as per Notification 12 /2017 dated 28th June 2017 and Section 11(1) of the CGST Act 2017 and Service
code 9986 storage or Warehousing of agricultural produce is covered under exemption and hence admissablity
of such input amount does not arise under the GST Act. The entire amount is to written off

d) Under the Government of Karnataka interest subsidy scheme, excess interest subsidy, amounting to Rs
2,38.764/-, has been paid to Gayithramma

e) i) Theinterestincome of Rs.1,05,43,773/- earned on the short term deposit which was transferred to the

the respective Government grants has been treated as income from other soures Under Sec 56 of the
IT Act 1961 by the income tax authorities and demand has been raised for Rs 23,82,031/- for AY 2008-
09 vide order dated 16.11.2010. An Appeal which was preffered on the said order by the company on
23.12.2010 has been dismissed by the Commissioner of Income Tax, Appeal |,Bangalore. The company
had filed a further appeal before The Income Tax appellate Tribunal, Bangalore Bench, which has been
disposed off in favour.of the company. However the rectified order with refund is awaited from the
IncomeTax Department.

i) Inrespectof FBT for the AY 2008-09, the Income Tax Department has raised a demand of Rs. 68,580/
-order dated 16.11.2010, as payable u/sec 115 WE(1) of the Act. The company has filed for rectification
of mistake u/s 154 on 06.12.2010 and no order has been received on the same.

f)  The Company contributes to a group gratuity scheme of Life Insurance Corportaion of India (LIC) for future
payment of retirement gratuties to its employees. The premium calculated is based on actuarial valuation.
The subsidiary does not contirbute to a fund.

g) According to the opinion of the management, disclosure of information on segmental reporting of operations
of the Company is not applicable.

h) The Company is a Government Company within the meaning of Section 617 of the Companies Act 1956 and
is wholly owned by the Government of Karnataka. The Directors are appointees /nominees of Government of
Karnataka.

i) Capital commitments : The Company has awarded work for construction of Integrated Cold Chain Facility at
Poojenahalli.

j)  Horticulture Farm near International Airport to Rinac India Ltd Ulsoor, Bangalore -8 at all inclusive Tender
Price of Rs 24,60,00,000. The management has represented that the work has commenced and no running
acccount bill has been raised to date.

k) Inrespect of fixed assets, an amount of Rs 7,18,91,478 under Building, and Rs 3,83,01,211 under Plant &
Machinery of Humnabad Projectand Vijayapura project has been reversed to work in progress due to non
completion/non handing over of project and an amount Rs 17,94,375 under head Building and Rs 96,31,988
under head Plant & Machinery of ACR Kudachi Project has been reversed to Assistance From APEDA for
KUDACHI Project under 4(2b), as the company is only a facilitator for the project and the same is not the
asset of the company.

[) The sum of Rs.54,78,856/-which was shown under ‘Capital reserve’ was ‘written-in’ as suggested by C & AG
during their audit for the FY 2018-19. Similarly, Grant of Rs.50,00,000/- received from Government of India
shown under Capital Grants was also ‘written-in’ as suggested by C & AG during their audit for the FY 2018-
19.

m) The company had received loans of Rs.20,00,000/- and Rs.12,00,000/- from Bruhat Bangalore Mahanagara
Palike (BBMP) during earlier years and Rs.1,00,00,000/- received during the financial year 2016-17and
these loans are not going to be repaid, at least, in the next twelve months and hence the Loan amounts
aggregating to Rs.1,32,00,000/- has been shown under unsecured loan for which there are no agreements.
Further during the financial year 2019-20, BBMP has paid a sum of Rs.3,16,56,426/- including interest to
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KUIDFC which was due by KCDC. This amount was paid to them as per the direction given by Addl. Chief

Secretary, UDD, GOK-dt. 31.10.2019. This amount is shown in the financials as due to BBMP

n) The company has been handed over 14 acres of land by BBMP that is adjacent to the existing premises for
Upgrading the plant to 500 TPD for processing of garbage on 15th February,2013. The Government of Karnataka
vide its Order No. AE 491 MSY 2014 dated 26/08/2014 has constituted Empowered Committee under the
Chairmanship of Additional Chief Secretary (UDD) with KUIDFC as a nodal agency for establishment of nine
compost plants in Bangalore at an estimated cost of Rs.270.00 crores and earmarked Rs.34.00 crores for
expansion of KCDC unit to scale up its capacity to 500 TPD. KUIDFC/BBMP has drawn up a detailed
master plan for construction of High roof shed on 5.0 acres concrete yard, erection and installation of
modernized processing machinery of 500 TPD, construction of internal roads, extension of height of compound
wall, Renovation of Administrative Building, construction of Bio-filter unit, shifting of accumulated garbage
and procurement of loaders/vehicles etc., in the premises of KCDC and the same has been completed and
finished in all respects. It is reiterated here that the entire cost of all the items mentioned in this para was
borne by GOK and BBMP. Company has started using the assets mentioned above.

However the company neither has ownership over the assets installed in its premises nor has incurred any

liability /obligation in respect of the cost of the installed infrastructure and machinery nor is there any

arrangement for collection of rent / lease charges. The company has, in accordance with the directions of
the Government of Karnataka, handed over limited right of possession to install and erect the sheds and
machinery and has not eased its title and right over the property to any other person or entity.

0) There are no Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises to whom the company owes dues, which are outstanding
for more than 45 days as at the balance sheet date. The micro, small and medium enterprises have been
identified on the basis of information collected by the management.

p) Inthe absence of balance sheet and profit and Loss for part of the year as on the date of merger, the profits
and reserves as on 31-03-2018 has been considered in the preparation of the consolidation

g) During the financial year under consideration, the following amounts are ‘written-in.

* EMD------—--=----- Rs. 6,00,574.00

* Dealers Deposit- Rs. 3,26,000.00

» Security Deposit- Rs. 34,770.00

» Sundry Creditors- Rs. 4,88,012.60

r)  Contingent Liability not provided for:

a. Income Tax demand for AY 2014-15 Rs. 80,37,642/-

b. Property tax payable to BBMP is not provided for, as KCDC has become part & parcel of BBMP with
immediate effect, as far as the management of the company is concerned vide Govt’s order no.48/2014
dt.11.06.2015, i.e., KCDC has come within the management jurisdiction of BBMP. Since then BBMP is
managing the affairs of the corporation by giving financial assistance in the form of grants. Moreover,
there is no demand from BBMP to pay the Property tax.

s) EARNING PER SHARE inRs
PARTICULARS For the year ended For the year ended
31.03.2020 31.03.2019
Net Profit after tax 1,38,93,515 1,43,43,144
Earning per Eqity share of Rs 100 each (Basic) 277.87 286.86

t) Related Party Disclosures:
As per Accounting Standard 18 ‘Related Party Disclosures’, notified in the Companies (Accounting Standards)
Rules 2006, the disclosure of transactions with related parties as defined in AS 18 are given below.
Parties where control exists and transactions with the related parties during the previous financial year:
Note: Information relating to key management personnel has been restricted to Directors in whole time

employment with the Company by virtue of Accounting Standard Interpretation (ASI)-23 issued by the
Accounting Standards Board of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI).
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A. Names of related parties and description of relationship
Other parties under common control i) Bruhat Bangalore Mahanagara Palike
il) Karnataka State Co-Operative Marketing Federation Limited
B. Transactions with other parties under common control

PARTICULARS For the year ended For the year ended
31.03.2020 31.03.2019

Karnataka State Co-operative Marketing Federation Limited

Trade Receivable 14,890 14,890

Trade Payable 75,608 75,608

Advances for supplies 95 95

Bruhat Bangalore Mahanagara Palike (BBMP)

unsecured Loan 4,48,56,426 1,32,00,000

u) Debitand Credit balances in Trade Receivables and Trade Payables are subject to confirmation

v)  As the subisdiary was acquired in the 2018-19, previous years cash flows based on the difference between
2017-18 and 2018-19 does not arise

w) Grant from BBMP which has been shown under capital reserve in the subsidiary has been regrouped to
Government Grants in the consolidation in order to follow the classification as per the parent comnpany
classification

x) Previous year's figures have been regrouped/reclassified wherever necessary to be in conformity with the
current year's presentation.

NOTE - 34 Additional information on net assets and share of profits as at 31st March 2020

Net Assets Share in profit or (loss)
As % of As % of
Name of the Entity consolidated| ~ Amount in consoli- Amount in
net Rs dated Rs.
assets profit & loss

Parent

KARNATAKA STATE AGRICULTURAL PRODUCE

PROCESSING AND EXPORT CORPORATION LIMITED 106.30% |24,54,12,998 54.32% 53,08,512

Subsidiaries - Indian
KARNATAKA COMPOST DEVELOPMENT CORPORATIONLIMITED| -12%  [(2,79,54,510) 87.85% 85,85,003

Sub-total 21,74,58,488 1,38,93,515
Less Minority interest 5.81% |((1,34,18,165) -42.17% 41,20,801
Sub-total 100.00% (23,08,76,653 [ 100.00% 97,72,714
Less Effect of intercompany eliminations 0.00% 0.00% -
Total 100.00% |23,08,76,653 | 100.00% 97,72,714

Signature to Note No 1 to 34

For and on behalf of the Board As per our report of even date
Sd/- Sd/- For Ganesh & Co.
(B. Shivaraju) (Padmavathi) Chartered Accountants FRN: 000862S
Managing Director Director Sd/-
DIN No.08093976 DIN No.07262520 (Ganesh P)
Place : Bengaluru Date : MRN: 019551
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